
  
 

APOPKA CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
March 21, 2018 7:00 PM 

APOPKA CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

Agendas are subject to amendment through 

5:00pm on the day prior to City Council Meetings 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
INVOCATION - TBD 
PLEDGE 

 
AGENDA REVIEW 

PUBLIC COMMENT; STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Public Comment Period:  
The Public Comment Period is for City-related issues that may or may not be on today’s Agenda. If you are here for a matter that 
requires a public hearing, please wait for that item to come up on the agenda. If you wish to address the Council, you must fill out an 
Intent to Speak form and provide it to the City Clerk prior to the start of the meeting. If you wish to speak during the Public Comment 
Period, please fill out a green-colored Intent-to-Speak form. If you wish to speak on a matter that requires a public hearing, please fill 
out a white-colored Intent-to-Speak form. Speaker forms may be completed up to 48 hours in advance of the Council meeting. Each 
speaker  will  have  four minutes to  give  remarks,  regardless  of  the  number  of  items  addressed.  Please refer to Resolution No. 
2016-16 for further information regarding our Public Participation Policy & Procedures for addressing the City Council. 
 
CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Ratify the certificate of the official election results. 
2. KaBOOM! Grant acceptance of the letter of intent and funding.  
3. Authorize a Traffic Enforcement Agreement with Clear Lake Landings Homeowner's Association. 
4. Approve an Inmate Work Squad Contract with the Department of Corrections. 
5. Approve funding for Martin's Pond Aeration Fountains.  
6. Approve a School Capacity Enhancement Agreement concerning Lake Marshall Subdivision, Phases 1 & 2. 

 
BUSINESS (Action Item) 

1. Final Development Plan/Plat – Lake Gem Commerce Park – Quasi-Judicial                         Jean Sanchez 
Project:  Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC, c/o Michael Cooper  
Located at 511 & 611 Marshall Lake Road 
 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION (Action Item) 

1. Ordinance No. 2605 – First Reading – Comprehensive Plan Text Amendment – Legislative    David Moon 
Project: Amendment to the Future Land Use Element, Policy 20.10 and Table 20.10 
  

2. Ordinance No.  2635 – First Reading - Comprehensive Plan Amendment – Small Scale – Legislative   Phil Martinez 
Project: Kenney Harry Charles McAllister 
Located on the Northwest corner of North Hermit Smith Road, U.S. 441 intersection. 
  

3. Ordinance No.  2636 – First Reading - Change of Zoning – Quasi-Judicial                               Phil Martinez 
Project: Kenney Harry Charles McAllister  
Located on the Northwest corner of North Hermit Smith Road, U.S. 441 intersection 
  

4. Ordinance No. 2637 – First Reading - Change of Zoning                                       Bobby Howell 
PUD Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan - Quasi-judicial                                                          
Project: City of Apopka, James D. & Deborah M. Lyda, & Citizens Bank of Florida   
Located on Johns Road, west of S.R. 451 
 

CITY COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

1



  
 

 

 
MEETINGS AND UPCOMING EVENTS 

DATE TIME EVENT 

March 26, 2018 10:00am –  Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board Meeting: Winter Garden  

March 27, 2018 5:30pm –  Special City Council Meeting – Errol Estates @ 519 S. Central Ave. 

March 31, 2018 7:00am – Rabbit Run 5K – Northwest Recreation Complex 

March 31, 2018 9:45am –  Easter Eggstravaganza – Northwest Recreation Complex 

April 4, 2018 1:30pm –  City Council Meeting 

April 5, 2018 5:30pm – 9:00pm Food Truck Round Up 

April 9, 2018 6:30pm –  CONA Meeting – UCF Apopka Business Incubator  

April 10, 2018 5:30pm –  Planning Commission Meeting 

April 10, 2018 7:00am – 7:00pm Apopka Runnoff Election – Seat #1 & Seat #2 

April 11, 2018 5:30pm –  Special City Council Meeting – Errol Estates @ 519 S. Central Ave. 

April 13, 2018 7:00pm – 9:30pm  Movie in the Park – Cars 3 – Kit Land Nelson Park  

April 18, 2018 7:00pm –  City Council Meeting 

April 21, 2018 9:00am – 12:00pm  12
th

 Annual Apopka Health & Fitness Fair – Fran Carlton Center 

April 23, 2018 10:00am – Lake Apopka Natural Gas District Board Meeting: Winter Garden 

April 24, 2018 12:00pm –  Inauguration – Mayor & City Council Seats #1 & #2 

 
Individuals with disabilities needing assistance to participate in any of these proceedings should contact the City Clerk at least two (2) working days in 
advance of the meeting date and time at (407) 703-1704.  F.S. 286.0105 If a person decides to appeal any decision or recommendation made by 
Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, he will need record of the proceedings, and that for such purposes he may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. 
 
Any opening invocation that is offered before the official start of the Council meeting shall be the voluntary offering of a private person, to and for the 
benefit of the Council.  The views or beliefs expressed by the invocation speaker have not been previously reviewed or approved by the City Council or 
the city staff, and the City is not allowed by law to endorse the religious or non-religious beliefs or views of such speaker.  Persons in attendance at the 
City Council meeting are invited to stand during the opening ceremony. However, such invitation shall not be construed as a demand, order, or any other 
type of command.  No person in attendance at the meeting shall be required to participate in any opening invocation that is offered or to participate in the 
Pledge of Allegiance.  You may remain seated within the City Council Chambers or exit the City Council Chambers and return upon completion of the 
opening invocation and/or Pledge of Allegiance if you do not wish to participate in or witness the opening invocation and/or the recitation of the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
  

2



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: March 21, 2018 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:             City Clerk 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:      Official General Election  

        OTHER:                  Results 
  

 

SUBJECT:  2018 GENERAL ELECTION RESULTS 

 

REQUEST: RATIFY THE CERTIFICATE OF OFFICIAL ELECTION RESULTS 
  
SUMMARY:   

 

The City’s General election for Mayor and City Council Seat 1 and Seat 2 was held on March 13, 2018. 

On April 10, 2018 a Run-off election will be held for City Council Seat 1 between Candidate Suzanne 

Kidd and Candidate Alexander Smith, as well as Seat 2 between Candidate Alice Nolan and Candidate 

Diane Velazquez. 

 

The Canvassing Board met on March 13, 2018, 4:00 p.m. at the Supervisor of Elections office, 119 W 

Kaley Street, Orlando, FL to canvass the absentee and early voting ballots. The board reconvened at 7:00 

p.m. to continue canvassing ballots as the results came in from the precincts.  The Canvassing Board met 

again at the same location to conduct the voting system manual audit as required by FS 101.591, with the 

assistance from employees of the Orange County Supervisor of Election’s Office. Following the manual 

audit, the Canvassing Board voted unanimously to officially certify the March 13, 2018, City of Apopka 

General election results. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:   
 

N/A   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

Chapter 34 – Elections, Section 34-41 – Canvassing board; canvass and certification of votes, of the City 

Code of Ordinances requires the Canvassing Board to present the signed certificate containing the number 

of votes cast for each candidate to the City Council for ratification. The Canvassing Board recommends 

the Council ratify the official certified results of the General election held March 13, 2018, as presented. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director 

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

3



4



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:   March 21, 2018 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:                 Administration  

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:      Letter of Intent 

       OTHER:                    11/18/15 Staff Report & Minutes 
  

 

SUBJECT: KABOOM! LETTER OF INTENT 

 

REQUEST: IF AWARDED THE KABOOM GRANT, THE CITY OF APOPKA AGREES TO 

ACCEPT THE GRANT AND THE TERMS OUTLINED IN THE LETTER OF 

INTENT.  
  
SUMMARY: 
 

The City of Apopka has made it to the third round of the selection process for a KABOOM playground at 

Alonzo Williams Park.  

 

If awarded, the City of Apopka would be responsible for abiding by the KaBOOM! Letter of Intent:  

 Assume all responsibilities as outlined in the KaBOOM! Community Partner Project Summary  

 Submit $8,500 USD toward the cost of playground equipment  

 Own and maintain the playground for its lifetime  

 Provide land and secure all necessary permits for construction of playground  

 Remove all existing playground equipment currently on site  

 Perform site preparation resulting in a flat and dirt surface two weeks prior to Build Day of a site 

measuring at least 2,500 square feet.  

 Perform a utility check prior to Design Day and secure all necessary extensions to ensure the utility 

check is current through Build Day  

 Perform a soil test for lead and arsenic within two weeks of Design Day and perform remediation if 

necessary  

 Use Playworld Systems equipment and accept engineered wood fiber safety surfacing  

 Allow names and logos of KaBOOM! and the Funding Partner to be displayed on permanent 

playground signage, measuring 12 ¼ inches wide by 30 ¼ inches tall  

 Recruit at least 15 community members, residents, and/or parents to participate in the Design Day 

and planning process  

 Recruit 30 volunteers from the community to participate in two preparation days and recruit 100 

volunteers from the community to participate on Build Day  

 Provide food, water, tools, a dumpster, and music for volunteers on Build Day  

 Build the playground through supervised volunteer installation  

 Accept liability for and maintain the playground upon build completion  

 Obtain and maintain insurance for the playground and Build Day, and add KaBOOM! and the 

Funding Partner as additional insureds for the term described in the contract  

 Indemnify and hold harmless KaBOOM! and the Funding Partner  

 Follow KaBOOM! protocol on all media and promotions as outlined in the Corporate Sponsorship 

Policy  

 
5



If awarded the grant, the playground equipment will be purchased by a dedicated KaBOOM! funding 

partner. The Kiwansis Club of Apopka has agreed to be the community partner for the playground.   

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

$8,500 from the Recreation Impact Fee Fund    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Agree to accept the KaBOOM! Letter of Intent for Alonzo Williams Park. 

  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

6



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

March 6, 2018 
 
 
 
Dear applicant:  
 

Congratulations on making it to the third round of the selection process for the Build it with KaBOOM! 
playground grant! Before moving your application to the fourth and final step in the process, your 
organization will need to submit the following: 
 

 Signed Letter of Intent, which signifies full contract approval by your organization 
 

At this stage in the selection process, KaBOOM! requires all applicants to review and approve the draft 
Letter of Agreement (contract). Please have your organization’s authorized signatory and any other 
necessary parties review and approve the attached contract. Once this has been completed, the 
signatory must sign the Letter of Intent indicating that the contract is fully reviewed and approved and 
that your organization is prepared to sign an official contract within three business days of being 
awarded the Build it with KaBOOM! playground grant.  
 

KaBOOM! cannot recommend your application to the Funding Partner until the contract has been 
approved. Please note that signing the Letter of Intent does not guarantee funding or approval. 
Rather, we are now able to move you to the final step in the application process. 
 

If you are applying in partnership with one or more organizations, please have each partner sign a 
separate Letter of Intent. If you have questions about submitting a Letter of Intent for respective 
partners, please contact your Community Outreach representative.  
 

This is a standard form contract and changes cannot be made. However, if your signatory or any other 
reviewers have any questions, please direct them to your Community Outreach representative. 
 

We look forward to receiving your signed Letter of Intent.  
 

Sincerely, 

 
Jessica Fagioli, Senior Manager, Community Outreach 
(O) 202.464.6097 (F) 202.659.0210 
kaboom.org 
 

7



 
 

KaBOOM! Letter of Intent 
 
By signing this document, I understand that if my organization is selected for a KaBOOM! project, my 
organization will (please initial each point): 

 
______Assume all responsibilities as outlined in the KaBOOM! Community Partner Project Summary 

______Fundraise $8,500 USD toward the cost of playground equipment 

______Own and maintain the playground for its lifetime 

______Provide land and secure all necessary permits for construction of playground 

______Remove all existing playground equipment currently on site 

______Perform site preparation resulting in a flat and dirt surface two weeks prior to Build Day of a site 
measuring at least 2,500 square feet. 

______Perform a utility check prior to Design Day and secure all necessary extensions to ensure the utility 
check is current through Build Day 

______Perform a soil test for lead and arsenic within two weeks of Design Day and perform remediation if 
necessary 

______Use Playworld Systems equipment and accept engineered wood fiber safety surfacing 

______Allow names and logos of KaBOOM! and the Funding Partner to be displayed on permanent playground 
signage, measuring 12 ¼ inches wide by 30 ¼ inches tall  

______Recruit at least 15 community members, residents, and/or parents to participate in the Design Day and 
planning process  

______Recruit 30 volunteers from the community to participate in two preparation days and recruit 100 
volunteers from the community to participate on Build Day 

______Provide food, water, tools, a dumpster, and music for volunteers on Build Day 

______Build the playground through supervised volunteer installation 

______Accept liability for and maintain the playground upon build completion 

______Obtain and maintain insurance for the playground and Build Day, and add KaBOOM! and the Funding 
Partner as additional insureds for the term described in the contract 

______Indemnify and hold harmless KaBOOM! and the Funding Partner 

______Follow KaBOOM! protocol on all media and promotions as outlined in the Corporate Sponsorship Policy 

 
Signing this Letter of Intent signifies that all contract signatories have reviewed the draft contract and 
are prepared to sign a final contract within three business days of being awarded a KaBOOM! 
playground project. Please ensure that the person authorized to sign contracts signs below.  

 

Legal Name of Organization: _________________________________________________________________ 

Name of Organization to Use in Media:__________________________________________________________ 

Name and Title of Signatory (please print): ______________________________________________________ 

Authorized Signature: ___________________________________________Date: _______________________ 

Signatory Mailing Address: ___________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contact information for person who should receive KaBOOM! Invoice: 
 
Name:                                                             

Telephone number:  

Mailing Address:                 

Email:   

Fax:                                                                                             

 

8



  
 

APOPKA CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
November 18, 2015 7:00 PM 

APOPKA CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
 

PLEDGE 
INVOCATION - Reverend Richard King of St. James AME Church 
CALL TO ORDER 
ROLL CALL  
AGENDA REVIEW 
 

Please submit a “Notice of Intent to Speak card” to the City Clerk.  Action may not be taken by the Council at this 

meeting but questions may be answered by staff or issues may be referred for appropriate staff action.  If further 

action is necessary, the item may be placed on the agenda for further review and consideration.  NOTE:  Zoning or 

code enforcement matters which may be coming before the Board at a later date should not be discussed until such 

time as they come before the Board in a public hearing.  

Pursuant to F.S. 286.0114, members of the public shall be given a reasonable opportunity to be heard on 
propositions before the City Council.  Accordingly, comments, questions, and concerns regarding items listed on this 
agenda shall be received at the time the City Council addresses such items during this meeting.  Public comments 
are generally limited to four minutes. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

1. City Council meeting November 3, 2015. 
 
PUBLIC/STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
Presentations: 

Artist to present renditions of the Mayor Land Statues.             Peter Pasha 
 
CONSENT (Action Item) 

1. Approve the Disbursement Report for the month of October, 2015. 
2. Approval of CH2M Hill Engineers Inc., proposal for architectural and engineering services.        Jeff Plaugher 

 
PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTION (Action Item) 

1. Ordinance 2459 – First Reading - Annexation              David Moon 
2. Ordinance 2460 – First Reading - Annexation              David Moon 
3. Ordinance 2461 – First Reading - Annexation               David Moon 
4. Ordinance 2462 – First Reading - Annexation              David Moon 
5. Ordinance 2463 – First Reading - Annexation               David Moon 
6. Ordinance 2464 – First Reading - Amending Chapter 46 of the Code of Ordinances                 Brian Bowman                                            
7. Ordinance 2465 – First Reading - Annexation               David Moon 
8. Resolution 2015-24 - Invocation Policy for City of Apopka meetings                             Attorney Andrew Hand 

 
APPROPRIATIONS/DONATIONS/GRANTS 

1. O.C. Grant Award - Acceptance of EMS Simulation Training & Debriefing Solution System         Wil Sanchez 
2. KaBOOM! Grant - Acceptance of the letter of intent and funding                 Glenn A. Irby 

 
BUSINESS (Action Item) 

1. Orange County - 2016 Election Services and Equipment Use Agreement                Linda Goff          
2. Florida Hospital Apopka - Transportation Improvement Development Agreement                          David Moon 
3. Council  
4. Public 

 
MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 

Page 19



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

  
 

       CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: November 18, 2015 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Administration 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:      Letter of Intent 

  x    OTHER:                   Project Summary 

  
 

SUBJECT:  KABOOM! GRANT APPLICATIONS 

 

Request: IF AWARDED THE KABOOM! GRANT, THE CITY OF APOPKA AGREES TO 

ACCEPT THE GRANT AND CONDUCT ENHANCEMENT PROJECTS THAT 

WILL AIDE IN THE BEAUTIFICATION OF LAKE AVENUE PARK AND 

ALONZO WILLIAMS PARK. 

  
SUMMARY: 

 

The City of Apopka has been selected to participate in a screening call with KaBOOM!, a non-profit 

organization that is dedicated to providing children with great places to play. The screening call is the 

second stage of the selection process and if selected, the City of Apopka would be awarded a grant to 

purchase new playgrounds for Lake Avenue Park and or Alonzo Williams Park. Two separate 

applications were submitted and one or both applications may be funded. 

 

If awarded the new playgrounds, the City of Apopka would be responsible for abiding by the KaBOOM! 

Letter of Intent:  

 Assume all responsibilities as outlined in the KaBOOM! Community Partner Project Summary  

 Fundraise $8,500 USD toward the cost of playground equipment  

 Own and maintain the playground for its lifetime  

 Provide land and secure all necessary permits for construction of playground  

 Remove all existing playground equipment currently on site  

 Perform site preparation resulting in a flat and dirt surface two weeks prior to Build Day of a site 

measuring at least 2,500 square feet.  

 Perform a utility check prior to Design Day and secure all necessary extensions to ensure the 

utility check is current through Build Day  

 Perform a soil test for lead and arsenic within two weeks of Design Day and perform remediation 

if necessary  

 Use Playworld Systems equipment and accept engineered wood fiber safety surfacing  

 Allow names and logos of KaBOOM! and the Funding Partner to be displayed on permanent 

playground signage, measuring 12 ¼ inches wide by 30 ¼ inches tall  

 Recruit at least 20 community members, residents, and/or parents to participate in the Design Day 

and planning process  

 Recruit 30 volunteers from the community to participate in two preparation days and recruit 75 

volunteers from the community to participate on Build Day  

 Provide food, water, tools, a dumpster, and music for volunteers on Build Day  

 Build the playground through supervised volunteer installation  

 

Page 12110



 Accept liability for and maintain the playground upon build completion  

 Obtain and maintain insurance for the playground and Build Day, and add KaBOOM! and the 

Funding Partner as additional insureds for the term described in the contract  

 Indemnify and hold harmless KaBOOM! and the Funding Partner  

 Follow KaBOOM! protocol on all media and promotions as outlined in the Corporate Sponsorship 

Policy  

 

If awarded the grant, the playground equipment will be purchased by a dedicated KaBOOM! funding 

partner. The Big Potato Foundation and Rotary Club have agreed to adopt Lake Avenue Park and 

participate in the Community Build. Also, Earth Angels United have adopted Alonzo Williams Park and 

will conduct the Community Build. 

 

Estimated Costs for Enhancement Projects for each park: 
 

Landscaping  $1,072/park 

Irrigation   $1500/park 

Benches  $1000 each 

Pavilions  $50,000 each 

Grills   $500 each  

Tables   $1000 each 

 

The specific quantity of enhancement items will be determined after the City of Apopka is awarded the 

grant and Public Services completes park redesign plans. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

General Fund Reserves    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Agree to accept the KaBOOM! Letter of Intent. Fund enhancement projects that relate to the 

beautification of both parks which includes installation of irrigation systems, flower and landscaping. Add 

additional grills, pavilions, tables, and benches which will contribute to the revitalization of both parks.  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

Page 12211



 

KaBOOM! Letter of Intent 
 
By signing this document, I understand that if my organization is selected for a KaBOOM! project, my 
organization will (please initial each point): 

 
______Assume all responsibilities as outlined in the KaBOOM! Community Partner Project Summary 

______Fundraise $8,500 USD toward the cost of playground equipment 

______Own and maintain the playground for its lifetime 

______Provide land and secure all necessary permits for construction of playground 

______Remove all existing playground equipment currently on site 

______Perform site preparation resulting in a flat and dirt surface two weeks prior to Build Day of a site 
measuring at least 2,500 square feet. 

______Perform a utility check prior to Design Day and secure all necessary extensions to ensure the utility 
check is current through Build Day 

______Perform a soil test for lead and arsenic within two weeks of Design Day and perform remediation if 
necessary 

______Use Playworld Systems equipment and accept engineered wood fiber safety surfacing 

______Allow names and logos of KaBOOM! and the Funding Partner to be displayed on permanent playground 
signage, measuring 12 ¼ inches wide by 30 ¼ inches tall  

______Recruit at least 20 community members, residents, and/or parents to participate in the Design Day and 
planning process  

______Recruit 30 volunteers from the community to participate in two preparation days and recruit 75 volunteers 
from the community to participate on Build Day 

______Provide food, water, tools, a dumpster, and music for volunteers on Build Day 

______Build the playground through supervised volunteer installation 

______Accept liability for and maintain the playground upon build completion 

______Obtain and maintain insurance for the playground and Build Day, and add KaBOOM! and the Funding 
Partner as additional insureds for the term described in the contract 

______Indemnify and hold harmless KaBOOM! and the Funding Partner 

______Follow KaBOOM! protocol on all media and promotions as outlined in the Corporate Sponsorship Policy 

 
Signing this Letter of Intent signifies that all contract signatories have reviewed the draft contract and 
are prepared to sign a final contract within three business days of being awarded a KaBOOM! 
playground project. Please ensure that the person authorized to sign contracts signs below.  

 

Legal Name of Organization: _________________________________________________________________ 

Name and Title of Signatory (please print): ______________________________________________________ 

Authorized Signature: ___________________________________________Date: _______________________ 

Signatory Mailing Address: ___________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Contact information for person who should receive KaBOOM! Invoice: 
 
Name:                                                             

Telephone number:  

Mailing Address:                 

Email:   

Fax:                                                                                             

 Page 12312



KaBOOM! 4301 Connecticut Avenue, NW, Suite ML-1, Washington, DC | kaboom.org 

 Page 12413



KaBOOM! 4301 Connecticut Avenue, NW, Suite ML-1, Washington, DC | kaboom.org 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 12514



KaBOOM! 4301 Connecticut Avenue, NW, Suite ML-1, Washington, DC | kaboom.org 

 

  

 

                                                           

Page 12615



KaBOOM! 4301 Connecticut Avenue, NW, Suite ML-1, Washington, DC | kaboom.org 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 12716



KaBOOM! 4301 Connecticut Avenue, NW, Suite ML-1, Washington, DC | kaboom.org 

 

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

 

   

Page 12817



KaBOOM! 4301 Connecticut Avenue, NW, Suite ML-1, Washington, DC | kaboom.org 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                           

 

Page 12918



KaBOOM! 4301 Connecticut Avenue, NW, Suite ML-1, Washington, DC | kaboom.org 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                           

Page 13019



KaBOOM! 4301 Connecticut Avenue, NW, Suite ML-1, Washington, DC | kaboom.org 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                           
4
 I

 

Page 13120



CITY OF APOPKA

Minutes of the regular City Council meeting held on November 18, 2015, at 7: 00 p.m., in

the City of Apopka Council Chambers. 

PRESENT: Mayor Joe Kilsheimer

Commissioner Bill Arrowsmith

Commissioner Billie Dean

Commissioner Diane Velazquez

Commissioner Sam Ruth

City Attorney Andrew Hand
City Administrator Glenn Irby

PRESS PRESENT: John Peery - The Apopka Chief

Bethany Rodgers, Orlando Sentinel

INVOCATION — Commissioner Dean introduced Reverend Richard King of St. James AME
Church, who gave the invocation. 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE — Mayor Kilsheimer said in the fall of 1620, more than 100
Pilgrims set sail from England on the Mayflower and made landfall two months later in Plymouth, 

Massachusetts. The Pilgrims lost half their group during the first winter. With the help of two
members of local Native American Tribes, the settlers were able to successfully farm the lands and
by the following autumn, they reaped a bountiful crop. To celebrate the harvest and to give thanks, 
Governor William Bradford called for a feast and invited the local Native American Tribes who
worked alongside the Pilgrims to sustain their Colony. The Tribes and the Pilgrims hunted

together and feasted for three days. It became a tradition for colonists to celebrate the harvest
annually with the feast of Thanksgiving and President Abraham Lincoln proclaimed the final
Thursday in November to be a national holiday in 1863. However, Franklin D. Roosevelt signed a
joint resolution of Congress in 1941, which established the fourth Thursday of November as a
national holiday, the day we currently celebrate as Thanksgiving. He asked everyone to reflect
upon the spirit and collaboration between the Pilgrims and Native American Tribes that made it
possible for Plymouth to flourish and for our nation to give thanks as he led in the Pledge of
Allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES

1. City Council meeting November 3, 2015. 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez to
approve the minutes from the City Council meeting of November 3, 2015. Motion

carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, 

Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

PUBLIC/STAFF RECOGNITION AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Presentations: 

1. Artist to present renditions of the Mayor Land Statues — Mr. Peter Pasha presented scale
model maquettes of the Mayor John Land statues. One will be a larger than life statue of

21



CITY OF APOPKA

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 18, 2015, at 7: 00 p.m. 
Page 2

Mayor Land standing and will be on the front lawn of City Hall. The other is a life size
statue that will be on a bench in Kit Land Nelson Park. 

It was the consensus of the Council to proceed with the final product. 

CONSENT

1. Approve the Disbursement Report for the month of October, 2015. 
2. Approval of CH2M Hill Engineers Inc., proposal for architectural and engineering

services. 

Item 2 was pulled for discussion and comments from the public. 

Suzanne Kidd said this was for a building that will replace the building at Alonzo
Williams Park and she questioned if this was for the actual services for CH2M Hill to put

the drawings together or was it the actual projected cost for the building. She further
inquired what specifications the City submitted with regards to ceiling height, how the
square footage was determined, and if there was any opportunity for a concerned citizen
to have any input. 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised this amount was for the drawings. He stated there could be a

process determined to receive input. 

Commissioner Dean inquired if there were any bids for the company that was selected. 

City Administrator Irby affirmed the City had previously short listed two engineering
firms for continuing services contracts. CH2M Hill was one of the firms shortlisted and is
under a continuing services contract. They were chosen for this process as they have an
architect on staff. He advised we are counting upon a CDBG $750,000 grant to make

these improvements and we are on a deadline to submit the architectural drawings which
are a requirement of the grant. 

Commissioner Dean inquired why the City cannot set aside $ 750,000 in case we are not

awarded the grant so that we can move forward with this building. 

Mayor Kilsheimer said if the City is not awarded the grant, the option of allocating the
750,000 can be done. The time limit is upon submitting the grant application and we

need to obligate the funds for the design in order to submit the grant. 

Commissioner Arrowsmith said it was unfortunate the position the City is in with being
limited to two firms and only one having an architect on board. He felt $100,000 for a 30

foot building was exorbitant and it is a gamble. He said if it was up to him to come up
with $750,000, he would spend these funds on a new fire station. 

Mayor Kilsheimer affirmed the City of Apopka has not applied for a CDBG grant in more
than 10 years. The likelihood of receiving the grant is high. He advised Mr. Irby worked
on bringing the fee down to a more reasonable one. He inquired if this was postponed for
two weeks would it compromise the schedule for the grant. 

22



CITY OF APOPKA

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 18, 2015, at 7: 00 p. m. 
Page 3

Mr. Irby affirmed this grant would include more amenities that just the building. 

Jeff Plaugher advised the grant is due the first week in March and if we miss this round, 
there is no guarantee there will be another chance as the CDBG is legislative driven. He
explained we are applying for a small city grants and there are a lot of pluses with this
grant. 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to
approve the 2 items on the Consent Agenda. 

David Hoffman inquired if he heard correctly the $ 90,000 was for architectural drawings
and the $ 750,000 was for the construction to which Mayor Kilsheimer advised the total
grant was $ 750,000 and that would go toward the building and other amenities. 

Ray Shackelford asked Council to move forward with this project and applauded their
efforts for applying for grant funds. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer and Commissioners

Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS/ORDINANCES/RESOLUTIONS
1. Ordinance 2459 — First Reading — Annexation. The City Clerk read the title as

follows: 

ORDINANCE NO. 2459

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, TO
EXTEND ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO
ANNEX PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171. 044 THE

HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN
ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, OWNED BY JTD LAND AT

ROGERS RD., LLC, LOCATED AT 2303 ROGERS ROAD; 
PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he
closed the public hearing. 

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to
approve Ordinance No. 2459 at First Reading, and carry it over for a Second
Reading. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

2. Ordinance 2460 — First Reading — Annexation. The City Clerk read the title as
follows: 

ORDINANCE NO. 2460

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA FLORIDA, TO
EXTEND ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO

23



CITY OF APOPKA

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 18, 2015, at 7: 00 p. m. 
Page 4

ANNEX PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171. 044 THE

HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN
ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, OWNED BY HUY TRAN AND HAI
ANH NGUYEN, LOCATED AT 904 SCHOPKE LESTER ROAD; 
PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 

SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he
closed the public hearing. 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Ruth, to
approve Ordinance No. 2460 at First Reading, and carry it over for a Second
Reading. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

3. Ordinance 2461 — First Reading — Annexation. The City Clerk read the title as
follows: 

ORDINANCE NO. 2461

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA FLORIDA, TO

EXTEND ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171. 044 THE HEREINAFTER

DESCRIBED LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, OWNED BY PROPERTY INDUSTRIAL ENTERPRISES, 
LLC, LOCATED AT 300 WEST 2ND STREET; PROVIDING FOR

DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, 
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he
closed the public hearing. 

MOTION by Commissioner Dean, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to
approve Ordinance No. 2461 at First Reading, and carry it over for a Second
Reading. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

4. Ordinance 2462 — First Reading — Annexation. The City Clerk read the title as
follows: 

ORDINANCE NO. 2462

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA FLORIDA, TO

EXTEND ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX

PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171. 044 THE HEREINAFTER
DESCRIBED LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE

COUNTY, FLORIDA, OWNED BY DEBRA EVANS CARGIL, 

LOCATED AT 202 SOUTH HAWTHORNE AVENUE; PROVIDING
FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

24



CITY OF APOPKA

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 18, 2015, at 7: 00 p.m. 
Page 5

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he
closed the public hearing. 

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner

Velazquez, to approve Ordinance No. 2462 at First Reading, and carry it over for a
Second Reading. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

5. Ordinance 2463 — First Reading — Annexation. The City Clerk read the title as
follows: 

ORDINANCE NO. 2463

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA FLORIDA, TO

EXTEND ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171. 044 THE HEREINAFTER
DESCRIBED LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE
COUNTY, FLORIDA, OWNED BY APOPKA CLEAR LAKE
INVESTMENTS, LLC, LOCATED SOUTH OF PETERSON ROAD

AND WEST OF BINION ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO
THE CITY CLERK, SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN
EFFECTIVE DATE

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he
closed the public hearing. 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez, to
approve Ordinance No. 2463 at First Reading, and carry it over for a Second
Reading. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

6. Ordinance 2464 — First Reading — Amending Chapter 46 of the Code of
Ordinances. The City Clerk read the title as follows: 

ORDINANCE NO. 2464

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
APOPKA, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 46, " FIRE

PREVENTION AND PROTECTION" OF THE APOPKA MUNICIPAL
CODE, BY AMENDING ARTICLE III, " FIRE CODES AND

STANDARDS", SECTION 46- 76 TO ADOPT THE FLORIDA FIRE
PREVENTION CODE ( NFPA 1) AND THE LIFE SAFETY CODE
NFPA 101) BY REFERENCE; AMENDING SECTION 46- 78, THE

FLORIDA FIRE PREVENTION CODE, CHAPTER 13, " FIRE
PROTECTION SYSTEMS", PARAGRAPH 13. 3. 1. 2, " GENERAL"; 
PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK; 

PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

25



CITY OF APOPKA

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 18, 2015, at 7: 00 p. m. 
Page 6

Brian Bowman gave a brief lead in stating this has been in place since 1996 and benefits
the community as it is a safety and strict sprinkler ordinance. This ordinance is updating
the standards. 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he
closed the public hearing. 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Arrowsmith, to
approve Ordinance No. at First Reading, and carry it over for a Second Reading. 
Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners

Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

7. Ordinance 2465 — First Reading — Annexation. The City Clerk read the title as
follows: 

ORDINANCE NO. 2465

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA FLORIDA, TO

EXTEND ITS TERRITORIAL AND MUNICIPAL LIMITS TO ANNEX

PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTE 171. 044 THE HEREINAFTER
DESCRIBED LANDS SITUATED AND BEING IN ORANGE
COUNTY, FLORIDA, OWNED BY JERRY KIRKLAND AND

LANNETTE KIRKLAND, LOCATED AT 3707 ROCK SPRINGS
ROAD; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE CITY CLERK, 
SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to a public hearing. No one wishing to speak, he
closed the public hearing. 

MOTION by Commissioner Velazquez, and seconded by Commissioner Dean, to
approve Ordinance No. 2465 at First Reading, and carry it over for a Second
Reading. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer, and

Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

8. Resolution 2015-24 — Invocation Policy for City of Apopka meetings. The City Clerk
read the title as follows: 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-24

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
APOPKA, FLORIDA, REGARDING A CEREMONIAL OPENING
INVOCATION AND RECITATION OF THE PLEDGE OF

ALLEGIANCE AT COUNCIL MEETINGS PRIOR TO OFFICIAL
POLICYMAKING AND LEGISLATIVE FUNCTIONS; ADOPTING A
POLICY OF NON-EXCLUSION AND SELECTION OF

VOLUNTEER INVOCATION SPEAKERS AND A DIVERSITY OF
VIEWPOINT AND NON-EXCLUSION OF THOSE IN

ATTENDANCE; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS, SEVERABILITY
AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

26



CITY OF APOPKA

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 18, 2015, at 7: 00 p.m. 
Page 7

City Attorney Andrew Hand advised the changes from the last meeting are slight and are
mainly nuances. He said there is now a specific reference to an opening ceremony that has
been incorporated throughout the resolution. This comports with Supreme Court Justices' 
acknowledgement that invocations are part of a ceremonial meeting. He reviewed the
highlights of the resolution and advised references of places of worship has been broadened. 

Mayor Kilsheimer said he believed it was important to preserve our ability to hold
invocations. 

In response to Commissioner Velazquez inquiring if the Council will continue to rotate with
regards to inviting one to give the invocation, Mayor Kilsheimer said they would still rotate, 
but there will be a database maintained to choose from. 

Commissioner Arrowsmith said in the rare occasion the individual does not show up, you
have the right to have a moment of silence or dispense with the invocation. 

Mayor Kilsheimer opened the meeting to public participation. 

Barb Zakszewski spoke regarding the ceremonial opening and recitation of the Pledge of
Allegiance, stating cities and government entities were scrambling to develop inclusive
invocation policies that celebrate diversities. She declared we were twisting ourselves up in
knots rather than tackling real city business and said if you support the policy, you must be
prepared to defend the right for all groups to have their say. She stated she supported a
moment of silence in lieu of an invocation. 

Tenita Reid said this was a very emotional issue and we all value our freedoms to worship
on what we believe. She said we should listen to and take the attorney' s advice to have a
moment of silence. 

Suzanne Kidd said since the City seems determined to enshrine the practice of invocations
into city policy with this resolution, rather than taking the more pragmatic route of simply
providing a moment of silence, she would like to add her comments and point out two
potential pitfalls. One positive direction she saw was that citizens will have the choice to

stand or not during opening ceremonies. She stated she would hope the option to leave will
not be publically announced. She expressed concern that individual citizens unaffiliated
with any group or belief system, yet with the same civic spirit and goodwill as any
religiously affiliated speaker on the approved database will, by the wording of the speaker
selection section, be excluded from the process. She further expressed concern of diversity
by utilizing the database on a first serve, first come basis. 

Dale Fenwick said silence is not an option and the proposed policy was the right one for our
community. He said this has been crafted in compliance with decisions from the Supreme
Court. He said seeking divine guidance on public deliberations predates the founding of
our nation and remains a vital part of our governing bodies. He spoke to the Supreme Court
rulings in the Town of Greece with regards to spiritual needs of lawmakers connecting them
to a tradition dating to the time of the framers of the Constitution. He affirmed a moment of
silence states we have given in and requested this resolution be approved. 

27



CITY OF APOPKA

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 18, 2015, at 7: 00 p.m. 
Page 8

Pastor Doug Bankson thanked the City Commission and Attorneys for working hard on this
matter. He said our freedom of speech and freedom of religion is what is at stake here and it
was the first foundation in our Bill of Rights. He stated this policy is the right move rather
than to be silenced. 

Ray Shackelford spoke in agreement to some of the comments he heard from Suzanne Kidd
and said his concerns are not whether we continue to have prayers from local pastors and
citizens, but rather what we do after we hear those prayers. 

Tony Foster said this was new to him and it is ironic that he was talking about the power of
prayer earlier today. He said while he understands the legalities regarding prayer and
schools, and he was not necessarily backing the resolution, but he was backing prayer and
stated silence hides who we are. 

Reverend King spoke regarding this, stating silence was not an option. 

No one else wishing to speak, Mayor Kilsheimer closed the public input. 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez to
approve Resolution No. 2015- 24. 

Commissioner Arrowsmith pointed out that this administration has had 126 votes and fewer
than 10 were not unanimous. 

Commissioner Dean said he was not against prayer, but he felt with silent prayer no one is
discriminated against. 

Motion carried 4- 1 with Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, 

Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye, and Commissioner Dean voting nay. 

APPROPRIATIONS/DONATIONS/GRANTS

1. O.C. Grant Award — Acceptance of EMS Simulation Training & Debriefing
Solution System

Will Sanchez gave a brief presentation of the full body EMS system Metiman grant being
awarded by Orange County Medical Director. He said this provides the best patient care
to the community. He advised the original cost was $ 68, 000 and by researching, they
were able to locate a demo version in the amount of $40,000. By approving this grant it
will be fully funded and there will be no cost to the city. Ownership will be taken in mid- 
December. 

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner

Velazquez, to accept the grant. Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer
and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

28



CITY OF APOPKA

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 18, 2015, at 7: 00 p.m. 
Page 9

2. KaBOOM! Grant — Acceptance of the letter of intent and funding. 

Glenn Irby reported the City has been selected to participate in a screening with
KaBOOM!, a non-profit organization that is dedicated to providing children with places
to play and if selected, the City of Apopka would be awarded a grant to purchase new
playgrounds for Lake Avenue Park and/ or Alonzo Williams Park. There were two

separate applications submitted and the first will be for Lake Avenue Park. The City will
fundraise $ 8, 500 toward the cost of the playground equipment and will own and maintain
it. We provide the land and secure necessary permits, remove existing playground
equipment, and recruit community volunteers to help construct the playground. Staff is
requesting approval to accept the KaBoom! Letter of Intent. 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez to
direct staff to continue the process of application. Motion carried unanimously with
Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth
voting aye. 

BUSINESS

1. Orange County — 2016 Election Services and Equipment Use Agreement

Linda Goff, City Clerk, said this was the standard Services and Equipment Use

Agreement with the Supervisor of Elections. The General Election will be at no or

minimal cost to the City, as it is in conjunction with the Presidential Preference Primary, 
however, in the event there is a Run-off Election, the City would assume associated
costs. 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Velazquez to
approve the 2016 Election Services and Equipment Use Agreement as presented. 
Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer and Commissioners

Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

2. Florida Hospital Apopka — Transportation Improvement Development Agreement

David Moon, Planning Manager, gave a brief lead in for the Florida Hospital Apopka
Transportation Improvement Development Agreement. He advised on November 19, 
2014, the City Council approved the Transportation Improvements Development
agreement with Adventist Health Systems\ Sunbelt, Inc. This is the first amendment to

that agreement. He advised staff is recommending approval of the agreement. 

In response to an inquiring of Commissioner Velazquez, Mr. Moon advised 11% will be

covered by the Hospital' s cost and the other 89% are general impacts of traffic from the

surrounding area. However, that improvement qualifies for impact fee credits or
transportation impact fee funds, as defined within the agreement. 

MOTION by Commissioner Arrowsmith, and seconded by Commissioner Ruth, to
approve the Transportation Improvement Development Agreement with Florida
Hospital, Apopka. 

29



CITY OF APOPKA

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 18, 2015, at 7: 00 p. m. 
Page 10

Suzanne Kidd inquired how the cost share of 11% from the Hospital versus 89% from the

city is coming; stating it was no cash out of pocket, but it was impact fees that are not
going to be coming to the city that under ordinary circumstances would be. Also, the
proposal calls for landscaping, hardscaping, and irrigation maintenance to be assumed by
Florida Hospital, unless the city assumes the costs. She inquired if the city was assuming
the maintenance costs. It also mentions this will only move forward if the city and the
county are able to have an agreement for the city to take over the maintenance of Ocoee
Apopka Road. She further inquired about the Harmon Road extension. 

Mr. Moon advised Ocoee Apopka Road is a county road and they currently maintain it
from the intersection of Binion Road to downtown Apopka. Negotiations are currently
underway to have that transferred to the city to maintain. He advised eventually, with
annexations, the city would be taking it over. This jurisdiction allows the city to control
the driveway cuts. He advised the Hospital has agreed to maintain the landscaping for a
certain period of time. 

Motion carried unanimously with Mayor Kilsheimer and Commissioners

Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth voting aye. 

3. Council

Commissioner Ruth inquired about the outcome of the property required at Plymouth
Sorrento and Lester Roads in order to place a signal in that area. 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised this was still under discussions and they were awaiting a
response. He stated a quick take was also being looked into. 

MOTION by Commissioner Ruth, and seconded by Commissioner Arrowsmith, to
direct the City Attorney to begin the process of a quick taking of the southwest
corner of Plymouth Sorrento and Lester Roads. Motion carried unanimously with
Mayor Kilsheimer, and Commissioners Arrowsmith, Dean, Velazquez, and Ruth
voting aye. 

4. Public

Reverend Richard King presented a video and a Community Resolution on One Apopka
submitted by the South Apopka Ministerial Alliance. He asked the Council to consider
the contents of the resolution and what improvements need to be made. 

Mayor Kilsheimer advised the city was already making progress on two of these items; 
one being policies and procedures for all city owned community centers. He reported the
Summer Youth Jobs Program funding has been increased and Career Source of Central
Florida has committed $ 100, 000 to the Apopka Youth Works Program and there will be
enough for 75 positions. He advised Dr. Jackson has been working on this program and
credited her for almost doubling the scope of the program. He said the City is moving
forward on these matters. 

30



CITY OF APOPKA

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 18, 2015, at 7: 00 p.m. 
Page 11

Commissioner Dean said he would like to recognize and thank the community leadership
in coming forward with a thoughtful and objective presentation. He said he especially
liked that it addressed all of the citizens of Apopka. He stated he would hope all of his
colleagues would be mindful of the issues addressed in this resolution. 

Ed Poirier said he came here tonight to request some help, saying his wife died of cancer
four months ago. He lives on Park Glen Circle and said his street had quite a bit of cancer
going on. He stated the Mayor was kind enough to reach out to him a couple of months
ago and brought in some people from the Department of Health. Mr. Poirier stated the
Department of Health promised to provide some statistics for Apopka Cancer cases that

have never been received. Mr. Poirier stated another gentleman at the meeting promised
to go to his house and conduct a study. He advised this person came to his house and told
him he would be taking water and soil samples. He received an email from him a week
later, only to be told their investigation was over and they did not find anything. He said
he was here because he has asked the Mayor to petition the State Department of Health to
come back and finish their job. He affirmed in his research he has found the City only
tests for pesticides once every three years. He said even though certain items may not be
regulated, the City has a moral obligation to their citizens to let them know there may be
a health risk with some of the water. He reiterated he was here to ask the City to go back
and request the Department of Health finish the job they started. He said it was

important for the City to find the funding to conduct this testing from an independent
agency. 

Mayor Kilsheimer said he has been working with Mr. Poirier over the last several months
and during that time he has learned a lot about the water and how the Health Department
evaluates and investigates cancer clusters. He affirmed there is a 48 page document that
the Federal CDC publishes that states exactly how state health departments should
investigate cancer clusters. There are six conditions that must be met and it is a four step
process of investigating cancer clusters and every step along the way has a threshold that
must be met. He affirmed he called in the Department of Health that came and met with
Mr. Poirier and took his information. He said the pertinent paragraph in this states: 
There are a number of factors that do not support the need for further investigation and

those include: the State Department of Health should not proceed if the types of cancers
that have been reported are different types of cancers, not known to be related to one
another, or are a few cases of very common cancers, or if there is a lack of a plausible
environmental cause." He reiterated this is not the City of Apopka, the State Department
of Health, but it is the Federal Government laying down instructions on how to
investigate cancer clusters. He stated with Park Glen Circle there are two cases we know
of where two women passed away of breast cancer as the confirmed cases. There are not
seven confirmed cases. 

Mr. Poirier said there were seven cases and ten people were about to die. He walked out
stating he was all done talking to the Mayor, declaring he would be back the next
meeting. 

Mayor Kilsheimer said the bottom line was the Florida Department of Health was called
in and said there was no evidence of a cancer cluster on Park Glen Circle. The Florida
Department of Environmental Protection came in and checked all of our records and

31



CITY OF APOPKA

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 18, 2015, at 7: 00 p. m. 
Page 12

procedures at the Grossenbacher Water Plant and it was well within the established

limits. They also went to Park Glen Circle and went to the home of the Breck family and
measured the chlorine and it was within limits. 

Debbie Turner, from the Debbi Turner Cancer Resource Center in Apopka, said she
wanted to explain to this community that she has 85 children in middle school and high
school that they host on a weekly basis at the Cancer Center whose parents have been
diagnosed with cancer. This past year she has done 65 extra team groups because the

children are coming in to the Center asking why their parents have cancer and if they
drink the water in the City will they die, too. She said this community needs to band
together and realize the facts of this. She affirmed she researched from Yale University, 
Duke University, and the National Cancer Institution and there is not one case ever
documented that drinking water causes cancer or death. She said she is personally a
cancer survivor and understands a grieving family. When you are grieving you try to
blame someone and she stated the blame is not on the City, but on the disease of cancer. 

Ray Shackelford said in his lifetime he has worn many hats. One hat worn in the past was
serving on a statewide environmental justice commission that looks at causes of cancer
throughout the State of Florida. Based upon their research, the contaminants in water can

cause cancer. He applauded the Mayor' s efforts in reaching out to this family. He said

with regards to the Community Resolution, it embraces a reality for progress that all
people in all communities must be involved in the economic development process and

management within city government. He asked how often they can expect an update on
the action items listed on the resolution. 

Commissioner Dean inquired if the Council was going to act on this resolution. 

Mayor Kilsheimer said it has not been forgotten and reiterated that the two items of

progress have been made. He said this was not a resolution by the government of the City
of Apopka, it was by the South Apopka Ministerial Alliance. He further declared, he
takes everything the Ministerial Alliance says seriously and we are working on these
items on an individual basis. He pointed out a Charter Review process was completed in
2013. 

Rod Love commended Pastor King and the South Apopka Ministerial Alliance as it
relates to this resolution. He said you have to give City Council credit where credit is due
and this has been addressed. He spoke with regards to Chief McKinley and his being
aggressive and the Fire Department and their academy reaching out to diversify. 

Discussion ensued regarding Minority Diversity studies and the City of Apopka not being
able to join with the City of Orlando on their study. 

Ray Shackelford said the lobbyist stated we should be able to put language in the
document related to the town center project about minority women and veteran
contractors. If able to put language in that document, we should be able to reach out to
the contractors in general. 

32



CITY OF APOPKA

Minutes of a regular City Council meeting held on November 18, 2015, at 7: 00 p.m. 
Page 13

Ed Hollingsworth said he was trying to improve the look of the Chuck Wagon and has
met with city planners to try and get a mural on the dumpster wall to the back of the
building. He stated he was told by moving the logo or name it would then be considered
artwork. He showed the artwork he was trying to get improved and said he was here to
ask Council to give him permission to do a mural. He said he was trying to clean the area
and have outdoor seating. 

Mayor Kilsheimer thanked Mr. Hollingsworth for coming and asked him to meet with
Mr. Irby to work through this process and a compromise. 

MAYOR' S REPORT — No report. 

ADJOURNMENT —The meeting adjourned at 9: 36 p.m. 

ATTEST: 

Linda F. Goff, City Cl

33



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 X   CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF:  March 21, 2018 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:  Police Department 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:  Agreement 

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: PRIVATE STREET AGREEMENT FOR CLEAR LAKE LANDINGS 

 

REQUEST: AUTHORIZE THE POLICE CHIEF TO EXECUTE A TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT 

AGREEMENT WITH THE CLEAR LAKE LANDINGS HOMEOWNER’S 

ASSOCIATION TO ENFORCE TRAFFIC LAWS PURSUANT TO FLORIDA 

STATUTE.  
  
SUMMARY:  
 

The Police Department has been approached by the Clear Lake Landings Homeowner’s Association 

controlling the private roads within the Clear Lake Landings Neighborhood, to enforce municipal and state 

traffic codes and laws within the gated neighborhood. Florida State Statute 316.006(2)(b) allows for a 

municipality to exercise jurisdiction over any private road within its boundaries if the municipality and party 

owning such road enter into a written agreement approved by the City Council. A copy of the agreement has 

been executed by the Homeowner’s Association and is attached. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Not Applicable.     
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Ratify the agreement and authorize the Police Chief to execute the agreement on behalf of the City. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

34



35



36



37



38



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: March 21, 2018 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:       Amendment 1 

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: INMATE WORK SQUAD CONTRACT #W1095 AMENDMENT #1  
   

REQUEST: APPROVE AMENDMENT #1 OF THE CONTRACT WITH THE DEPARTMENT 

OF CORRECTIONS 

 

  
SUMMARY: 

 

On December 7, 2016, the City Council approved Inmate Work Squad Contract #W1095, for one-year 

with the potential for one one-year extension. The City Council approved the contract to go into effect 

April 12, 2017.  The current contract will expire April 11, 2018. The attached contract amendment will 

allow for a final one-year extension to expire on April 11, 2019. The cost will remain the same at 

$57,497. 

   
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Fund 101- Street Improvement Fund    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Authorize the Mayor or his designee to sign Amendment #1 to Contract #W1095 with the Department of 

Corrections for an inmate work squad. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director   

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

39



CONTRACT #W1095 
AMENDMENT #1 

Page 1 of 7 

CONTRACT AMENDMENT BETWEEN  

THE FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS 

AND 

CITY OF APOPKA 

This is an Amendment to the Contract between the Florida Department of Corrections (“Department”) and 
the City of Apopka (“Agency”), to provide for the use of inmate labor in work programs. 

This Amendment: 

• Renews the Contract for one (1) year pursuant to Section I., B., Contract Renewal; and revises the
end date of the Contract referenced in Section I., Contract Term, A.;

• Revises II., B., Description of Services, 1., Responsibilities of the Department, a.;
• Revises II., B., Description of Services, 3.,Communications Equipment, third paragraph;
• Revises Section IV., CONTRACT MANAGEMENT, first paragraph;
• Revises Section IV., A., Department’s Contract Manager;
• Revises Section VII., C., Disputes;
• Adds Section VII., K., Americans with Disabilities Act; and
• Revises Addendum A, third line.

 Original Contract Term: April 12, 2017 through April 11, 2018 

In accordance with Section V., CONTRACT MODIFICATIONS, the following changes are hereby made: 

1. Section I., CONTRACT TERM/RENEWAL, A., is hereby revised to read:

I. A. Contract Term

This Contract shall begin on April 12, 2017, or the last date of signature by all parties, 
whichever is later. 

This Contract shall end at midnight one (1) year from the last date of signature by all 
parties or April 11, 2019, whichever is later.  In the event this Contract is signed by the 
parties on different dates, the latter date shall control. 

This Contract is in its final renewal term. 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

40



CONTRACT #W1095 
AMENDMENT #1 

 Page 2 of 7 

2. Section II., B., Description of Services, 1., Responsibilities of the Department, a., is hereby revised to 
read: 
 
II. B. Description of Services 
 
 1. Responsibilities of the Department 
 

a. Pursuant to Rule 33-601.202(2)(a), F.A.C., supervision of the work squad(s) 
will be provided by the Department.  The Department shall provide one (1) 
Correctional Work Squad Officer position(s) to supervise an inmate work 
squad(s).  This Contract provides for one (1) work squad of up to six (6) 
inmates.   

 
3. Section II., B., Description of Services, 3., Communications Equipment, third paragraph., is hereby 

revised to read: 
 
II. B. Description of Services 
 
  3. Communications Equipment 
 

At the end or termination of this Contract, the Department's Contract Manager will 
contact the Department's Utility Systems/Communications Engineer in the Office of 
Institutions to effect the deprogramming of radio communications equipment 
provided by the Agency. 

 
4. Section IV., CONTRACT MANAGEMENT, first paragraph is hereby revised to read: 

 
IV. CONTRACT MANAGEMENT 
 

The Department will be responsible for the project management of this Contract.  The 
Department has assigned the following named individuals, address, and phone number as 
indicated, as Department’s Contract Manager and Department’s Contract Administrator for the 
Project. 

 
5. Section IV., A., Department’s Contract Manager, is hereby revised to read: 

 
IV. A. Department’s Contract Manager 

 
The Field Office Manager of the Central Florida Reception Center represented in this 
Contract is designated as the Department’s Contract Manager and is responsible for 
enforcing performance of the Contract terms and conditions and shall serve as a liaison 
with the Agency.  The title, address, and telephone number of the Department’s Contract 
Manager for this Contract is: 

 
Field Office Manager 
Central Florida Reception Center 
7000 H. C. Kelley Road 
Orlando, Florida 32831 
Telephone:  (407) 208-8187 
Email:  Johnnie.Pleicones@fdc.myflorida.com  

41



CONTRACT #W1095 
AMENDMENT #1 

 Page 3 of 7 

6. Section VII., C., Disputes, is hereby revised to read: 
 
VII. C. Disputes 
 

Any dispute concerning performance of the Contract shall be resolved informally by the 
Department’s Contract Manager.  Any dispute that cannot be resolved informally shall 
be reduced to writing and delivered to the Department’s Assistant Deputy Secretary of 
Institutions.  The Department’s Assistant Deputy Secretary of Institutions, shall decide 
the dispute, reduce the decision to writing, and deliver a copy to the Agency, the 
Department’s Contract Administrator, and the Department’s Contract Manager. 

 
7. Section VII., K., Americans with Disabilities Act, is hereby added to read: 
 

VII. K. Americans with Disabilities Act 
 

The Agency shall comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act.  In the event of the 
Agency’s noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses, the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, or with any other such rules, regulations, or orders, this Contract may 
be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the Agency may be 
declared ineligible for further Contracts. 

 
8. Addendum A, third line, is hereby revised to read: 

 
Interagency Contract Number W1095, Amendment #1 Effective April 12, 2018. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

42



CONTRACT #W1095 
AMENDMENT #1 

 Page 4 of 7 

All other terms and conditions of the original Contract remain in full force and effect. 
 
This Amendment shall begin on the last date of signature by all parties. 
 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be executed by their 
undersigned officials as duly authorized. 
 
AGENCY:  CITY OF APOPKA 
 
SIGNED 
BY: 

 

  
NAME:  
  
TITLE:  
  
DATE:  
  
FEIN: 59-60000265 
  
  
FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS  Approved as to form and legality, subject to 

execution. 
   
SIGNED 
BY: 

 SIGNED 
BY: 

 

    
NAME: Kasey B. Faulk NAME: Kenneth S. Steely 
    
TITLE: Chief, Bureau of Procurement TITLE: General Counsel 
    
DATE:  DATE:  
 

43



Addendum A Revised 06-02-03/01-12-04 Page 5 of 7

Revised Addendum A
Inmate Work Squad Detail of Costs for City of Apopka

Interagency Contract Number W1095, AMD#1 Effective April 12, 2018
***ENTER MULTIPLIERS IN SHADED BOXES ONLY IF TO BE INVOICED TO AGENCY*** Per Officer Total
 Annual Cost Annual Cost
I.  CORRECTIONAL WORK SQUAD OFFICER SALARIES AND POSITION RELATED-EXPENSES 
    TO BE REIMBURSED BY THE AGENCY:

Officers Salary # Officers  Multiplier 1 54,194.00$     ** 54,194.00$      
Salary Incentive Payment  1,128.00$        1,128.00$        
Repair and Maintenance 121.00$           121.00$           
State Personnel Assessment 354.00$           354.00$           
Training/Criminal Justice Standards 200.00$           200.00$           
Uniform Purchase 400.00$           400.00$           
Uniform Maintenance 350.00$           350.00$           
Training/Criminal Justice Standards  * 2,225.00$        

 
   TOTAL - To Be Billed By Contract To Agency 58,972.00$      56,747.00$      

*Cost limited to first year of contract as this is not a recurring personnel/position cost.

IA.

Number Total
Squads Annual Cost

II.  ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS TO BE REIMBURSED BY THE AGENCY:
Costs include but may not be limited to the following:
Rain coats, staff high visibility safety vest, inmate high visibility 
safety vest, fire extinguisher, first aid kit, personal protection kit, flex 
cuffs, warning signs, handcuffs, Igloo coolers, portable toilets, insect  
repellants, masks, vaccinations, and other administrative expenses. 1 750.00$           

TOTAL - To Be Billed By Contract To Agency 750.00$           
   

Tools, equipment, materials and supplies not listed in Section II above
are to be provided by the Agency.
 

       CELLULAR PHONE WITH SERVICE REQUIRED:               YES              NO
       ENCLOSED TRAILER REQUIRED:                                       YES              NO

The Overtime Hourly Rate of Compensation for this Contract is $31.85, if applicable.   (The Overtime Hourly 
Rate of Compensation shall include the average hourly rate of pay for a Correctional Officer and the average benefit 
package provided by the department, represented as time and one half for purposes of this Contract.)         
         
"           

** Annual cost does not include overtime pay.

III.  ADDITIONAL AGENCY EXPENSES:

X
X

44



Addendum A Revised 06-02-03/01-12-04 Page 6 of 7

Revised Addendum A
Inmate Work Squad Detail of Costs for City of Apopka

Interagency Contract Number W1095, AMD#1 Effective April 12, 2018

Per Unit Number Total Bill To Provided Already
IV.  OPERATING CAPITAL TO BE ADVANCED BY AGENCY: Cost of Units  Cost Agency By Agency Exists
          Hand Held Radio   -$                 
          Vehicle Mounted Radio 1 -$                 

TOTAL Operating Capital To Be Advanced By Agency -$                 
 

 Total
V.  TOTAL COSTS TO BE  ADVANCED BY AGENCY: Cost
     1.  Operating Capital - from Section IV.   $0.00
     2.  Grand Total - To Be Advanced By Agency At Contract Signing: $0.00

VI.  TOTAL COSTS TO BE BILLED TO AGENCY BY CONTRACT: Total
Cost

     1.  Correctional Officer Salaries and Position-Related Expenses - from Section I. $56,747.00
     2.  Other Related Expenses and Security Supplies - from Section II.  $750.00
     3.  Grand Total - To Be Billed To Agency By Contract: $57,497.00

VII.  TOTAL OF ALL COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH CONTRACT: $57,497.00
        (Total of Sections V. and VI.)

VIII.  OVERTIME COSTS:
        If the contracting Agency requests overtime for the work squad which is approved by the Department,
        the contracting Agency agrees to pay such costs and will be billed separately by the Department for the cost of overtime.
    

  

MACOM    $4969.00
 MACOM   $5400.00 XX

45



Addendum A Revised 06-02-03/01-12-04 Page 7 of 7

 
                                                                                                 Addendum A - INSTRUCTIONS

Inmate Work Squad Detail of Costs for City of Apopka
Interagency Contract Number W1095, AMD#1 Effective April 12, 2018

Section I.  Costs in this section are determined each fiscal year by the Budget and Management Evaluation Bureau and are fixed.  
By entering the number of Officers required for this contract, the spreadsheet will automatically calculate the "Total Annual Cost" 
column.  If this Work Squad is beyond the first year of existence, enter a zero (0) in the "Total Annual Cost" 
column for "Training/Criminal Justice Standards" after you have entered the "# Officers Multiplier".

Section II. Safety and environmental health procedures require safety measures such as the use of safety signs, vests, and clothing.
The Department's procedure for Outside Work Squads requires that all Work Squad Officers be responsible for ensuring their squad 
is equipped with a first aid kit and a personal protection equipment (PPE) kit.  Section II identifies such required
equipment.  A new squad must be sufficiently equipped and an on-going squad must be re-supplied when needed.
Type in the number of squads used for this contract and the spreadsheet will automatically calculate the fixed annual expense
 of $750.00 per squad and place the total in Section VI.

Section III. Check "Yes" or "No" to indicate whether a Cellular Phone with Service and/or an Enclosed Trailer is required by the Contract Manager.

Section IV. The Department's procedure for Outside Work Squads requires that they have at least one (1) primary means of direct
communication with the Institution’s Control Room.  Communication via radio and/or cellular phone is appropriate. 
It is preferred that a backup, secondary means of communication also be available.  It is the Agency's responsibility to provide them.

a radio(s) is not being purchased at this time.  Check applicable boxes ("Bill to Agency", "Provided by Agency" and "Already Exists") for

NOTE:  All radio communication equipment owned or purchased by the Agency that is programmed to the Department's radio
frequency and used by the work squad(s), whether purchased by the Department or the Agency, shall be IMMEDIATELY
deprogrammed by the Department at no cost to the Agency upon the end or termination of this Contract.

Section V. The total funds the Agency must provide at the time the contract is signed will be displayed here when the form is properly filled out. 

Section VI. The total funds the Agency will owe contractually, and pay in equal quarterly payments, will be displayed here.

Section VII. The total funds associated with the Contract, to be paid by the Agency as indicated in Sections V. and VI., will be displayed here.

Section VIII. Any agreement in this area will be billed separately as charges are incurred.

each radio. 

If the Department purchases a radio(s), the Agency must fund the purchase at the time the Contract is signed.  Check the box for the type 
of radio and fill in the Per Unit Cost for the type of radio, Number of Units, and Total Cost columns. Leave the Total Cost column blank if

46



 

CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

  X  CONSENT AGENDA      MEETING OF: March 21, 2018 

___ PUBLIC HEARING      FROM:              Public Services 

       SPECIAL REPORTS      EXHIBITS:        

       OTHER:  
  

 

SUBJECT: MARTIN’S POND AERATION FOUNTAINS  
   

REQUEST: APPROVE FUNDING FROM THE STORMWATER FUND RESERVES FOR THE 

PURCHASE AND INSTALLATION OF AERATION FOUNTAINS IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $100,000 

 

  
SUMMARY: 

 

Funding for the purchase of aeration fountains for the water quality maintenance of Martin’s Pond, 

located adjacent to the Highland Manor, was approved in the Fiscal Year 2016/2017 Stormwater Budget, 

in the amount of $100,000.  Due to contract negotiations regarding the development of the Downtown 

Center, purchase of the fountains was delayed. 

 

Water quality and the aesthetic appearance of the pond is deteriorating and is requiring additional 

treatment.  Staff is requesting funding to proceed with the purchase and installation of aeration fountains 

for Martin’s Pond.  The fountains will be decorative in appearance, with LED lighting that will present an 

attractive appearance, while providing ongoing aeration treatment to the pond. 

 

Staff is requesting approval for funding in the amount of $100,000 from the Stormwater Fund Reserves 

for the purchase and installation of fountains for Martin’s Pond. 

   
FUNDING SOURCE: 
 

Fund 120- Stormwater Fund Reserves    
RECOMMENDATION ACTION: 
 

Approve funding from the Stormwater Fund Reserves for the purchase and installation of aeration 

fountains in the amount of $100,000. 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  

Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director   

City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 

47



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

X CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: March 21, 2018 

 PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

 OTHER:   Capacity Enhancement Agreement 
  
SUBJECT:  LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION, PHASES 1 AND 2 SCHOOL CAPACITY 

ENHANCEMENT AGREEMENT 
    
REQUEST:  APPROVAL OF THE LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION, PHASES 1 AND 2 

SCHOOL CAPACITY ENHANCEMENT AGREEMENT  
 

SUMMARY:    
 
As the Property Owner of a portion of the Lake Marshall Subdivision Plan, the City needs to provide consent to Royal 

Oak Homes to record the Agreement against the City Parcel. The Consent and Joinder authorization is located on 

page 17 of the Agreement. 

 

New residential development applications are reviewed by Orange County Public Schools for their impact placed on 

existing student capacity at public schools.  In 2008 the City of Apopka entered into an Interlocal Agreement with 

the Orange County School Board to address public school facility planning and implementation of school 

concurrency.  When school enrollment is over capacity at the public schools serving additional students generated by 

a proposed residential development, a new development must enter into a Capacity Enhancement Agreement to 

mitigate school overcrowding attributable to the anticipated additional students in the form of a Capital Contribution, 

all as specified in Section 8 of the Interlocal Agreement.  

 

The terms of the Capacity Enhancement Agreement include a clause that it is not effective until the City property is 

transferred to the developer.(See Section 8, page 6 of the Agreement.) Further, the City’s signature is an 

acknowledgment of the CEA, not a commitment to any financial obligations that normally are attached to a Capacity 

Enhancement Agreement. If the sale of the property does not go forward as planned, the City’s responsibility related 

to the Capacity Agreement becomes null and void.  
 
OWNER:   City of Apopka, James D & Deborah M. Lyda, and Citizens Bank of Florida 
 
APPLICANT:   Royal Oak Homes, Appian Engineering, LLC/Luke M. Classen, P.E. 
 
ENGINEER:   Appian Engineering, LLC/Luke M. Classen, P.E.  
 
LOCATION:   705 Johns Road (South of Marshall Lake and West of SR 451) 
 
PROPOSED USE:  301 Single Family Homes; developed in two phases 
 
TRACT SIZE:   154.18 +/- acres 
 
SCHOOL ATTENDENCE  
ZONES:   Apopka Elementary; Wolf Lake Middle; Apopka High 
 
FUNDING SOURCE:  
N/A  
 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
  48



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 21, 2018 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION PHASES 1 AND 2 
SCHOOL CAPACITY ENHANCEMENT AGREEMENT 
PAGE 2 
 

 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
March 21, 2018 – City Council (7:00 pm) (Consent Agenda) 
 
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 
City Council Recommended Motion:  Accept the Lake Marshall Subdivision Phases 1 and 2 School 
Capacity Enhancement Agreement and authorize the Mayor to sign the Agreement. 
 
  

49



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 21, 2018 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION PHASES 1 AND 2 
SCHOOL CAPACITY ENHANCEMENT AGREEMENT 
PAGE 3 
 

Project: LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION, PHASES 1 & 2 

Owned by:  City of Apopka; James D. & Deborah Lyda; and Citizens Bank of Florida 

Located: North and south of Johns Road; west of SR 451 

Parcel ID#s: 08-21-28-0000-00-005; 08-21-28-0000-00-043; 17-21-28-0000-00-014 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

50



After recording return to:
Jamie Boerger, AICP, LEED AP
Orange County Public Schools
6501 Magic Way, Building 200
Orlando, Florida 32809

----------------[SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE FOR RECORDING DATA]-------------

SCHOOL MITIGATION AGREEMENT FOR

CAPACITY ENHANCEMENT

APK-17-009
Project Name: Lake Marshall Subdivision

Parcel ID: 08-21-28-0000-00-005; -043; 17-21-28-0000-00-014

THIS SCHOOL MITIGATION AGREEMENT FOR CAPACITY
ENHANCEMENT (“Agreement”), is entered into this _____day of ___________2018 by and
between THE SCHOOL BOARD OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, a body corporate and
political subdivision of the State of Florida, (“School Board”) and the “Applicant”, which
consists of Citizens Bank of Florida, a Florida corporation, whose address is 156 Geneva Drive,
Oviedo, FL 32765, and the owner of Property identified by parcel number 17-21-28-0000-00-014
(“Citizens Parcel”); and James D. and Deborah M. Lyda, whose address is 2265 Park Village
Place, Apopka, Florida, 32712, and the owner of Property identified by parcel number
08-21-28-0000-00043 (“Lyda Parcel”). The School Board and Applicant are sometimes referred
to herein individually as a “Party” or collectively as the “Parties”.

RECITALS:

WHEREAS, the School Board, Orange County, Florida, City of Maitland, Town of
Oakland, City of Orlando, City of Winter Park, City of Apopka, City of Winter Garden, and City
of Ocoee have entered into that certain “Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement For Public
School Facility Planning and Implementation of Concurrency” (the “Interlocal Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 8 of the Interlocal Agreement, Section 704.B.2. of the
Orange County Charter, and Section 30-742 of the Orange County Code, as may be amended
from time to do (together the “County Code”), an Applicant for a rezoning or comprehensive
plan amendment that will generate additional students in a School Attendance Zone in which
there is insufficient Net School Capacity to accommodate the anticipated additional students
must enter into a Capacity Enhancement Agreement to mitigate the school overcrowding
attributable to the anticipated additional students, all as specified in Section 8 of the Interlocal
Agreement; and

WHEREAS, City of Apopka, a municipal corporation of the State of Florida (“City”), is
the fee simple owner of that certain real property more specifically identified by parcel number
08-21-28-0000-00-005 (“City Parcel”) and more particularly described on Exhibit “A” attached

 1
 APK-17-009 2-13-18

51



hereto and incorporated herein by reference, which comprises a portion of the Property
(hereinafter defined); and

WHEREAS, Applicant is the fee simple owner of that certain tract of land located in the
City of Apopka, Florida, as more particularly described on Exhibit “B”, attached hereto and
incorporated herein by reference (the “Applicant Property”). The Applicant Property and City
Parcel shall be collectively referred to herein as the Property. The Property location is further
illustrated by a map attached hereto as Exhibit “C”, and incorporated herein by reference; and

WHEREAS, the Property is subject to three separate Contracts for Sale and Purchase in
favor of Avatar Properties, Inc. a Florida corporation (“Avatar”) as Purchaser;  and

WHEREAS, Avatar as Purchaser of the Property has agreed to join in this Agreement
and following the completed conveyance of the Property to Avatar be bound by this Agreement
and will execute assignment and assumption of the Agreement; and

WHEREAS, City hereby joins in this Agreement for the sole purpose of providing
consent to the recordation of this Agreement against the City Parcel enforceable upon the sale,
transfer and conveyance of the City Parcel to a third party purchaser and assumes no debt, rights
or obligation as to this Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Applicant has submitted a “Development Application” (APK-17-009)
to the City government (the “Applicable Local Government”) in connection with a proposal to
obtain a rezoning or comprehensive plan amendment in order to develop 301 single-family,
detached residential dwelling units on the Property (the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, the Applicable Local Government has determined that the Property is
currently vested for 107 Residential Units (the “Vested Units”), and the Applicant is seeking
governmental approval to increase that amount by 194 Residential Units (the “New Units”); and

WHEREAS, at the time of this Agreement, the Property is located in the following
School Attendance Zones: Apopka Elementary School, Wolf Lake Middle School, and Apopka
High School (“Project Schools”); and

WHEREAS, based on the current adopted Level of Service standards of the School
Attendance Zone(s) within which the Property is located, the School Board has determined there
is insufficient Net School Capacity at the middle and high school level for the number of public
school students that the New Units are anticipated to generate; and

WHEREAS, local government approval of the Development Application without
requiring mitigation for the impacts of the proposed New Units will either create or worsen
school overcrowding at the applicable Project School(s); and

WHEREAS, the Applicant has agreed to enter into this Agreement to provide capacity
enhancement mitigation proportionate to the demand for public school facilities to be created by
the New Units, as more particularly set forth herein (“Mitigation”).

 2
 APK-17-009 2-13-18

52



NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing described Mitigation, the
mutual covenants contained herein, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto, intending to be legally bound,
agree as follows:

1. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. The foregoing recitals are true and correct
and are hereby incorporated into this Agreement by this reference as if fully set forth herein.

2. DEFINITION OF MATERIAL TERMS. Any capitalized terms used herein but
not defined shall have the meaning attributed to such term in the Interlocal Agreement.

3. LEGALLY BINDING COMMITMENT. This Agreement constitutes a legally
binding commitment by the Applicant to mitigate for the impacts of the New Units for which the
Applicant is seeking approval pursuant to the Development Application and is intended to satisfy
the requirements of Section 8 of the Interlocal Agreement.

4. CAPACITY ENHANCEMENT MITIGATION.  The Parties agree that the
Applicant shall provide the following Mitigation, in order to provide for additional capacity for
the elementary/middle/high school students to be generated by the New Units:

a. Capital Contribution. Applicant shall pay to School Board a voluntary
contribution in the amount of TWO HUNDRED AND SIXTY-TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS
FIVE HUNDRED THIRTY-EIGHT AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($262,538.00) to cover the
additional costs associated with providing the necessary capacity for the New Units (“Capital
Contribution” and detailed on “Capital Contribution Calculation” included herein as Exhibit
“D”).  Such additional payment of the Capital Contribution shall be made to the School Board
prior to recording a plat of the Property in the Public Records of Orange County, Florida. No plat
shall be recorded for any New Units on the City Parcel until such time as fee simple title to the
City Parcel has been conveyed or transferred to Avatar or another third party purchaser.
Applicant agrees and acknowledges that the Capital Contribution required hereunder by the
School Board is fair, reasonable, and necessary to mitigate for impacts resulting from the New
Units in the Project.

In the event Applicant develops the Project in multiple phases, then references in this
Agreement to platting shall mean final plat for each phase. As a result, the payments due from
Applicant under this Section may be paid in increments, prior to the Applicant’s recording a final
plat for each phase, based on the number of Residential Units reflected on the final plat for each
such phase.  As there are 194 New Units anticipated, the capital contribution ratio is ONE
THOUSAND, THREE HUNDRED AND FIFTY-THREE DOLLARS AND 29/100 ($1,353.29)
per New Unit.

b.  INTENTIONALLY OMITTED

c. Mitigation Payment Form. This Agreement requires the Applicant to pay
Mitigation in the form of Capital Contribution prior to recording of a final plat or obtaining a
building permit. The form attached to and incorporated herein as Exhibit “E” must be completed
and returned to the School Board’s Department of Facilities Planning with all fees due hereunder,

 3
 APK-17-009 2-13-18

53



including, but not limited to, the Capital Contribution payment, to satisfy the requirements of this
section.

d. Credit to Proportionate Share Mitigation. If applicable any Mitigation paid
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement shall be credited toward any required Proportionate
Share Mitigation that may otherwise be due for the New Units in accordance with Section 19 of
the Interlocal Agreement. Any payments made in accordance with this section shall not be
deemed payments of any School Impact Fees on any of the New Units or Vested Units as
required pursuant to the School Impact Fee Ordinance.

5. SCHOOL IMPACT FEES.

a. Payment of School Impact Fees. Notwithstanding anything contained
herein to the contrary, Applicant shall pay, to the City at the time of building permits are issued,
School Impact Fees for any Residential Units in the proposed Project in accordance with the
provisions of the School Impact Fee Ordinance. The amount is currently estimated to be ONE
MILLION SEVEN HUNDRED FOUR THOUSAND NINETY SIX AND 00/100 DOLLARS
($1,704,096.00) which reflects an applied rate of EIGHT THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED
EIGHTY FOUR AND 00/100 DOLLARS ($8,784.00) per Residential Unit. In the event School
Impact Fees are modified before the issuance of building permits for any of the Residential Units
in the Project, then Applicant shall be obligated to pay the School Impact Fee applicable at the
time building permits are issued by the Applicable Local Government. Any Capital Contribution
paid hereunder shall not act as a credit against any School Impact Fees due and payable in
accordance with the School Impact Fee Ordinance.

b. Discontinuance of School Impact Fees.  Applicant understands and
acknowledges that the fiscal impact analysis conducted in connection with this Agreement and
the calculation of the amount of the Capital Contribution is based on the Capacity Enhancement
Mitigation formula provided in the Interlocal Agreement as may be amended from time to time
less any School Impact Fees contemplated to be paid to the School Board for the Residential
Units in the Project. In the event that Orange County, for any reason, discontinues the practice of
collecting School Impact Fees in connection with new Residential Development, the
consequence of same with respect to the rights and obligations of the Parties under this
Agreement shall be as set forth in the following provisions of this subsection.

i. No Substitute of Funds – Applicant Obligations.  If Orange County
discontinues the practice of collecting School Impact Fees, and if there is no specifically
identified (i.e., discernable from either the language in the administrative rule or
legislative ordinance, statute or similar act establishing the discontinuance, or in the
legislative history) substitute source of funds whatsoever for the School Impact Fees
provided to the School Board, then Applicant shall nevertheless, for each of the New
Units in the Project after the discontinuance, pay the School Board an amount equal to the
School Impact Fee in effect immediately prior to the time that Orange County’s practice
is discontinued, which payment shall be deemed Mitigation payable in accordance with
the terms of Section 4 hereof.

 4
 APK-17-009 2-13-18

54



ii. Partial Substitute of Funds – Applicant Obligations.  If Orange County
discontinues the practice of collecting School Impact Fees, and if a specifically identified
(i.e., discernable from either the language in the administrative rule or legislative
ordinance, statute or similar act establishing the discontinuance, or in the legislative
history) substitute source of funds for the School Impact Fees is provided to the School
Board replacing only a portion of the School Impact Fees, then Applicant shall
nevertheless, for each of the New Units contained either on a Plat or in a Multi-Family
Project approved by the Applicable Local Government after the discontinuance, pay the
School Board for each New Unit, an amount of money equivalent to the balance of the
School Impact Fee in effect immediately prior to the time that Orange County’s practice
is discontinued less than substitute source of funds, which payment shall be reasonably
calculated by the School Board and deemed Mitigation payable in accordance with the
terms of Section 4 hereof.

iii. Full Substitute of Funds Provided - Applicant Obligations.  If Orange
County discontinues the practice of collecting school impact fees, but a substitute source
of funds is provided to the School Board replacing, in full, the School Impact Fees, then
Applicant shall have no obligation to continue payments of School Impact Fees
contemplated in this Section 5 after the discontinuance.

iv. Timing of Payments.  In regard to the alternative payments by
Applicant contemplated in Subsections 5.b.i and 5.b.ii above, Applicant shall pay such
funds to the School Board prior to when the plat for the Property is recorded in the Public
Records of Orange County, Florida, or prior to when the Applicant’s first building permit
for vertical construction is issued for the Project, whichever is applicable, in an amount
equal to the School Impact Fee imposed in the most recent School Impact Fee Ordinance.

v. Sales Tax.  Any sales tax or millage referendums for the benefit of the
School Board shall not be regarded as a substitute source of funds for School Impact
Dees.

6. SCHOOL CAPACITY IMPROVEMENT. The School Board agrees to utilize
the Applicant’s Mitigation to address the overcrowding that would be created or worsened by
approval of the Applicant’s Development Application.  Uses of Mitigation may include, but are
not limited to, the following:

a. Purchase or lease of real property for construction of additional school
facilities that would provide additional capacity.

b. Construction of additional permanent student stations in new buildings or
through renovation of existing buildings.

c. Construction of additional core facilities in new schools or expansion of
existing core facilities in existing schools.

d. Provision of additional temporary capacity through the lease or purchase
of portable facilities until permanent facilities may be constructed.

 5
 APK-17-009 2-13-18

55



e. Advancing a school included in the most recent Capital Outlay Plan that
will provide capacity for the students generated by the Applicant’s Development Application.

f. Any other actions which will result in provision of the necessary School
Capacity.

7. EFFECTIVE DATE. The effective date of this Agreement shall be the date upon
which the last one of the Parties hereto has properly executed this Agreement as determined by
the date set forth immediately below their respective signatures (the “Effective Date”).
Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement shall only be effective against and for the benefit
of the City Parcel upon the sale, transfer and conveyance of fee simple title to the City Parcel to
Avatar or a third party purchaser.

8. TERMINATION. School Board may, in its sole and absolute discretion, elect to
terminate this Agreement by delivering written notice to the Applicant under the following
circumstances and upon such termination, Applicant shall forfeit any administrative application
fees or Mitigation, if any, paid to School Board::

i.. The Applicable Local Government does not approve the
Development Application within one hundred eighty (180) days of the Effective Date of this
Agreement.

ii. The Applicant, by failure to proceed in good faith in a diligent and
timely manner, fails to record a plat or secure approval of the Development Application for the
Project or its functional equivalent within three (3) years of the Effective Date.

iii. The Applicant is in default under the terms and conditions of this
Agreement and has failed to cure such default within the cure period set forth in Section 9 of this
Agreement. In the event of termination as provided for in this subsection, School Board may in
its sole and absolute discretion, record a termination of the Agreement and request the Applicable
Local Government discontinue the issuance of any building permits, certificates of occupancy or
plat approval for the Project or otherwise discontinue the process for any other approvals for the
Project.

iv. The Applicant has satisfied any and all terms and conditions of this
Agreement to the reasonable satisfaction of the School Board.

v. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the City Parcel is
anticipated to be developed as Phase One of the Project, and the Lyda Parcel and the Citizens
Parcel collectively are anticipated to be developed as Phase Two of the Project. Notwithstanding
anything in this Agreement to the contrary, if Avatar has acquired the City Parcel, but not the
Lyda Parcel and Citizens Parcel, on or before one (1) year after the Effective Date, then this
Agreement shall terminate as to the Lyda Parcel and the Citizens Parcel, but shall remain in full
force and effect as to the City Parcel. In such case, all calculations set forth in this Agreement
shall be based on the 177 Residential Units proposed in the Development Application for the
City Parcel (Phase One of the Project) for a total of 70 New Units.

 6
 APK-17-009 2-13-18

56



vi. In the event fee simple title to the City Parcel is not transferred to
Avatar or another third party purchaser on or before one (1) year after the Effective Date, this
Agreement shall automatically terminate as to the City Parcel and be deemed null and void and
of no further force and effect.  In such case, all calculations set forth in this Agreement shall be
reduced by the 107 Vested Units and 70 New Units allocated to the City Parcel.

9. DEFAULT.

a. Rights Upon Default. A default by either Party under this Agreement shall
entitle the non-defaulting party to all remedies available at law or in equity, including, without
limitation, the right of School Board to terminate this Agreement s provided in Section 8 hereof.
Prior to declaring a default and exercising the remedies described herein, the non-defaulting party
shall issue written notice of default to the defaulting party describing the event or condition of
default in sufficient detail to enable a reasonable person to determine the action necessary to cure
the default.  If the default is the non-payment of money, the defaulting Party shall have fifteen
(15) days from receipt of the notice in which to cure the default. If the default is other than for the
non-payment of money, the defaulting party shall have thirty (30) days from receipt of the notice
to cure such default; provided, however, if such default cannot be reasonably cured within such
thirty (30) day period, the defaulting party shall have a longer period of time to cure such default,
so long as the defaulting party commences to cure such default within said thirty (30) day period
and diligently and continuously proceeds to final cure of such default. If the default has not been
cured within the period provided above, or in the case of a default other than for the non-payment
of money, if the cure is not commenced within the period provided above or is not diligently and
continuously pursued to completion, the non-defaulting party may exercise the remedies
described in this Section 9. Notwithstanding the foregoing, immediately upon the default of the
Applicant, School Board may request the Applicable Local Government discontinue the issuance
of any building permits, certificates of occupancy or plat approval for the Project or otherwise
discontinue the process for any other approvals for the Project until all amounts due and unpaid
under this Agreement have been paid to the School Board.

b. Waiver. Applicant hereby waives any right of Applicant, its successors and
assigns, to contest the Applicable Local Government’s power and authority to discontinue the
issuance of any building permits or certificates of occupancy for the Project, discontinue any plat
approval or discontinue the process for any other approvals for the Project upon Applicant’s
breach and failure to cure of any of its obligations under this Agreement. Applicant represents
and warrants to School Board and the Applicable Local Government that this waiver has been
entered into freely and voluntarily by applicant, without coercion, duress, or undue influence, and
with full understanding and awareness of the circumstances, consequences in ramifications of
such waiver.

10. SCHOOL CONCURRENCY. APPLICANT UNDERSTANDS AND
ACKNOWLEDGES THAT NEW UNITS SUBJECT TO CAPACITY ENHANCEMENT
REVIEW PROCESS AND COVERED UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, AS WELL AS
VESTED UNITS NOT SUBJECT TO THE CAPACITY ENHANCEMENT REVIEW
AND NOT ADDRESSED IN THIS AGREEMENT WILL BE SUBJECT TO SEPARATE

 7
 APK-17-009 2-13-18

57



REVIEW FOR SCHOOL CONCURRENCY PURPOSES AS SET FORTH IN THE
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT.

11. APPROVALS REQUIRED.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the approval of this
Agreement by the School Board shall not constitute an approval, position of support or
endorsement of the New Units by the School Board and Applicant shall be required to obtain
approval of the Development Application from the Applicable Local Government.

12. COVENANTS RUNNING WITH THE LAND. This Agreement shall be
binding, and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, legal representatives, successors, and assigns
of the Parties, and shall be a covenant running with the Property and be binding upon the
successors and assigns of the Applicant and upon any person, firm, corporation, or entity who
may become the successor in interest to the Property.

13. NOTICES. Any notice delivered with respect to this Agreement shall be in
writing and be deemed to be delivered (whether or not actually received) (a) the date and time the
same are personally delivered or transmitted electronically with confirmation of receipt (i.e.,
facsimile or electronic mail); (b) within three (3) days of deposit of such notice in the United
States Mail, postage prepaid, certified mail, return receipt requested; or (c) within one (1) day
after depositing with Federal Express, UPS or other reputable overnight delivery service in which
a receipt may be obtained.  Such notice shall be addressed to the person at the address set forth
opposite the Party’s name below, or to such other address or other person as the Party shall have
specified by written notice to the other Party delivered in accordance herewith:

School Board: The School Board of Orange County, Florida
Attn: Superintendent of Schools
445 West Amelia Street
Orlando, Florida 32801

With a Copy to: Orange County Public Schools
Attn: Facilities Planning
6501 Magic Way, Building 200
Orlando, Florida 32809

Applicant: Avatar Properties, Inc.
2420 S. Lakemont Avenue, Suite 450
Orlando, Florida 32814
Attention: Ken Thirtyacre

14. CAPTIONS AND SECTION HEADINGS. Captions and paragraph headings
contained in this Agreement are for convenience and reference only and in no way define,
describe, extend or limit the scope or intent of this Agreement.

15. NO WAIVER.  No waiver of any provision of this Agreement shall be effective
unless it is in writing, and signed by the Party against whom it is asserted. Any such written
waiver shall only be applicable to the specific instance to which it relates, and shall not be
deemed to be a continuing or future waiver. No failure of either Party to exercise any power

 8
 APK-17-009 2-13-18

58



given hereunder or to insist upon strict compliance with any obligation specified herein, and no
custom or practice at variance with the terms hereof, shall constitute a waiver of either party's
right to demand exact compliance with the terms hereof.

16. EXHIBITS. All Exhibits attached hereto are a part of this Agreement and are
fully incorporated herein by this reference.

17. AMENDMENTS. No modification, amendment, or alteration in the terms or
conditions contained herein shall be binding upon the parties hereto unless in writing and
executed by all the Parties to this Agreement. School Board does hereby confer upon the
Superintendent, or Superintendent’s designee, the authority to amend this Agreement, provide
any consent, notice or approval set forth herein or otherwise exercise any right or election of the
School Board granted or reserved herein, without formal approval from School Board, provided
such amendment or consent does not substantially alter or modify the terms herein. Further, the
Superintendent, or Superintendent’s designee, shall have the authority, without further approval
from the School Board, to finalize the form of all agreements, assignments, and similar
documents set forth in this Agreement, and the Superintendent’s signature of those agreements,
assignments, and similar documents is hereby authorized. The extension of any payment or
deadline required hereunder for less than one (1) year shall not be considered to substantially
alter or modify the terms herein. If, in the sole judgment of School Board, such amendment or
consent does substantially alter or amend this Agreement, then School Board shall have the
option of declaring the amendment or consent void ab initio on or before ninety (90) days after
Superintendent’s execution of the amendment or consent,, thus rendering the amendment or
consent without any legal force and effect, and the School Board or Superintendent shall notify
Applicant in writing of such voiding of the amendment.

18. ASSIGNMENT, TRANSFER OF RIGHTS. The Applicant may assign its
rights, obligations and responsibilities, including the capacity reserved for the Property, under
this Agreement to a third-party purchaser of all or any part of fee simple title to the Property,
with the School Board’s prior written consent. Applicant shall submit its request for consent of
an assignment and/or transfer under the terms of this Section 18, in writing to the School Board
prior to such assignment and/or transfer. The School Board shall have fifteen (15) days after
receipt of said request to approve or deny the request, which approval shall not be unreasonably
withheld, conditioned or delayed. The School Board hereby authorizes the Superintendent or
his/her designee to consent to all assignments and/or transfers of rights described in this Section
18. In the event the Superintendent or his/her designee fails to deny or object to an Applicant’s
request within the time period prescribed herein, such assignment and/or transfer request shall be
deemed denied.  Such consent may be conditioned upon the receipt by the other parties hereto of
the written agreement of the assignee to comply with conditions and procedures to aid in the
monitoring and enforcement of the assignee’s performance of the Applicant’s obligations with
regard to Mitigation under this Agreement. Such assignment and/or transfer shall be promptly
recorded in the Public Records of Orange County, Florida at Applicant’s or assignor’s expense.

The School Board hereby consents to the assignment of this Agreement to Avatar
Properties, Inc., or an affiliate of Avatar Properties, Inc., and by signing the Joinder and Consent
to this Agreement, Avatar Properties, Inc., for itself and on behalf of any affiliate that may
become an assignee of this Agreement, hereby agrees to comply with the conditions and

 9
 APK-17-009 2-13-18

59



procedures to aid in the monitoring and enforcement of the assignee’s performance of the
Applicant’s obligations with regard to Mitigation under this Agreement.

19. COUNTERPARTS AND ELECTRONIC SIGNATURES. This Agreement
may be executed in two or more counterpart copies, including facsimile and electronic mail
signatures, each of which shall be deemed to constitute one original document.

20. RECORDING OF THIS AGREEMENT. The School Board agrees to record
this Agreement, at Applicant’s expense, in the Public Records of Orange County, Florida. The
applicant shall pay the expense to record to school board no later than five business (5) days from
the Effective Date

21. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement among
the Parties with respect to the subject matter addressed herein, and it supersedes all prior and
contemporaneous negotiations, understandings and agreements, written or oral, among the
Parties.

22. SEVERABILITY. If any provision of this Agreement is declared invalid or
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, the invalid or unenforceable provision will be
stricken from the Agreement, and the balance of the Agreement will remain in full force and
effect as long as doing so would not affect the overall purpose or intent of the Agreement.

23. APPLICABLE LAW. This Agreement and the provisions contained herein shall
be construed, controlled, and interpreted according to the laws of the State of Florida and in
accordance with the Orange County Code and venue for any action to enforce the provisions of
this Agreement shall be in the Ninth Judicial Circuit Court in and for Orange County, Florida.

24. ATTORNEY’S FEES. In the event any party hereto brings an action or
proceeding, including any counterclaim, cross-claim, or third party claim, against any other party
hereto arising out of this Agreement, each party in such action or proceeding, including appeals
therefrom, shall be responsible for its own attorney fees.

25. TIME. Time is of the essence of this Agreement. Wherever under the terms and
provisions of this Agreement the time for performance falls on a Saturday, Sunday, or legal
holiday, such time for performance shall be extended to the next business day.

26. NEGOTIATION. All of the Parties to this Agreement have participated fully in
the negotiation and preparation hereof; this Agreement shall not be construed more strongly for
or against any Party regardless of which party is deemed to have drafted the Agreement.

27. NO PARTNERSHIP OR JOINT VENTURE.  Nothing contained in this
Agreement shall be construed to create a partnership or joint venture between the Parties or their
successors in interest. Except as otherwise set forth herein, no person other than the Parties shall
have any rights or privileges under this Agreement, whether as a third-party beneficiary or
otherwise.

10
 APK-17-009 2-13-18

60



28. FURTHER ASSURANCE. The Parties hereto agree to execute any and all
further instruments and documents and to take such actions as may be reasonably required to
carry out the terms of this Agreement.

29. CEA NUMBER. The Applicant, and any subsequent owner applicant of a
development order other than a building permit for any parcel subject to this Agreement, shall
reference on the cover sheet of the plans for the Property that the Property is subject to this
Agreement and include thereon the applicable Agreement number set forth above.

 (SIGNATURE AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT ON FOLLOWING PAGE)

11
 APK-17-009 2-13-18

61



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by
their respective duly authorized representatives on the dates set forth below each signature:

Signed and sealed in the presence of:

______________________________________
Print Name: ___________________________

______________________________________
Print Name: ___________________________

“SCHOOL BOARD”

THE SCHOOL BOARD OF ORANGE
COUNTY, FLORIDA, a body corporate and
political subdivision of the State of Florida

By: ________________________________
         William E. Sublette, its Chairman

Date:________________________________

STATE OF FLORIDA )
) s.s.:

COUNTY OF ORANGE )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of
_________________, 2018, by William E. Sublette, Chairman of The School Board of Orange
County, Florida, a body corporate and political subdivision of the State of Florida, on behalf of
The School Board, who is personally known to me or had produced
_________________________ (type of identification) as identification.

________________________________
NOTARY PUBLIC OF FLORIDA

Print
Name:_______________________

Commission No.:__________________
AFFIX NOTARY STAMP Expires:__________________________

[ADDITIONAL SIGNATURE PAGES TO FOLLOW]

12
 APK-17-009 2-13-18

62



THE SCHOOL BOARD OF ORANGE
COUNTY, FLORIDA, a body corporate 

Signed and sealed in the presence of: and political subdivision of the State of Florida  

Attest: 
Print Name: Barbara M. Jenkins, Ed.D. as its

Superintendent

Print Name: Dated:

STATE OF FLORIDA )
) s.s.:

COUNTY OF ORANGE )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ___ day of
_________________, 2018, by Barbara M. Jenkins, ED.D. as Superintendent of The School
Board of Orange County, Florida, a body corporate and political subdivision of the State of
Florida, on behalf of The School Board, who is personally known to me or has produced
__________________________________ (type of identification) as identification.

________________________________
NOTARY PUBLIC OF FLORIDA

Print
Name:_______________________

Commission No.:__________________
AFFIX NOTARY STAMP Expires:__________________________

Reviewed and approved by Orange County
Public School’s Chief Facilities Officer

____________________________________
John T. Morris
Chief Facilities Officer

Date: _________________________, 2018

Approved as to form and legality by legal
counsel to The School Board of Orange
County, Florida, exclusively for its use and
reliance.

_____________________________________
Laura L. Kelly, Staff Attorney III/Planning
and Real Estate

Date: ___________________________, 2018

13
 APK-17-009 2-13-18

63



“APPLICANT”

Signed and sealed in the presence
of:

Print Name: 

Print Name: 
______

JAMES D. LYDA

By:_________________________________

Print Name: 

Title: 

Date:________________________________

STATE OF FLORIDA )
) s.s.:

COUNTY OF ORANGE )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of __________,
2018, by _____________________________ as _____________________________ of
___________________________________________________, on behalf of the organization.
He/she is personally known to me or has produced __________________________________
(type of identification) as identification.

________________________________
NOTARY PUBLIC OF FLORIDA

Print
Name:_______________________

Commission No.:__________________
AFFIX NOTARY STAMP Expires:__________________________

APPLICANT SIGNATURE PAGES CONTINUE ON NEXT PAGE

14
 APK-17-009 2-13-18

64



“APPLICANT”

Signed and sealed in the presence of:

Print Name: 

Print Name: 

DEBORAH M. LYDA

By: ________________________________

Print Name: 

Title: 

Date:________________________________

STATE OF FLORIDA )
) s.s.:

COUNTY OF ORANGE )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of __________,
2018, by _____________________________ as _____________________________ of
___________________________________________________, on behalf of the organization.
He/she is personally known to me or has produced __________________________________
(type of identification) as identification.

________________________________
NOTARY PUBLIC OF FLORIDA

Print
Name:_______________________

Commission No.:__________________
AFFIX NOTARY STAMP Expires:__________________________

APPLICANT SIGNATURE PAGES CONTINUE ON NEXT PAGE

15
 APK-17-009 2-13-18

65



     “APPLICANT”

Signed and sealed in the presence of:

Print Name: 

Print Name: 

CITIZENS BANK OF FLORIDA

By:_________________________________

Print Name: 

Title: 

Date:________________________________

STATE OF FLORIDA )
) s.s.:

COUNTY OF ORANGE )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of __________,
2018, by _____________________________ as _____________________________ of
___________________________________________________, on behalf of the organization.
He/she is personally known to me or has produced __________________________________
(type of identification) as identification.

________________________________
NOTARY PUBLIC OF FLORIDA

Print
Name:_______________________

Commission No.:__________________
AFFIX NOTARY STAMP Expires:__________________________

ADDITIONAL SIGNATURE PAGES CONTINUE ON NEXT PAGE

16
 APK-17-009 2-13-18

66



JOINDER AND CONSENT

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, a municipal corporation of the State of Florida (“City”)

hereby joins in and consents to the School Mitigation Agreement for Capacity Enhancement,

School Board Application Number APK-17-009, LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION (the

“Agreement”), as the fee simple owner of the City Parcel, as defined in the Agreement, for the

sole purpose of providing consent to the recordation of this Agreement against the City Parcel

and binding nature of the Agreement against the City Parcel.  This Agreement shall only be

enforceable against the City Parcel upon the sale, transfer and conveyance of the City Parcel to

Avatar, as defined in the Agreement, or another third party purchaser. Notwithstanding the

foregoing, neither the Agreement nor this consent and joinder shall serve as the consent of the

City to assume any debts, rights or other obligations under the terms and conditions of this

Agreement, including, without limitation, any monetary obligations or development rights.

Signed and sealed in the presence of:

___________________________________
Print Name:_________________________

___________________________________
Print Name:_________________________

CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, a municipal
corporation of the State of Florida

By:_________________________________
Print Name: 
Title: 
Date:________________________________

STATE OF FLORIDA )
) s.s.:

COUNTY OF ORANGE )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of __________,
2018, by _____________________________ as _____________________________ of
___________________________________________________, on behalf of the organization.
He/she is personally known to me or has produced __________________________________
(type of identification) as identification.

________________________________
NOTARY PUBLIC OF FLORIDA

Print
Name:_______________________

Commission No.:__________________
AFFIX NOTARY STAMP Expires:__________________________

17
 APK-17-009 2-13-18

67



JOINDER AND CONSENT

AVATAR PROPERTIES, INC, a FLORIDA PROFIT CORPORATION, hereby

joins in and consents to the above School Mitigation Agreement for Capacity Enhancement,

School Board Application Number APK-17-009, LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION (the

“Agreement”), for itself and on behalf of any affiliate of AVATAR PROPERTIES, INC. that

receives an assignment of the Agreement, and further agrees to comply with the conditions and

procedures to aid in the monitoring and enforcement of the assignee’s performance of the

Applicants’ obligations with regard to Mitigation under this Agreement.

WITNESSES:

Print Name:

Print Name:

AVATAR PROPERTIES, INC., a Florida
Profit Corporation

By:

Print Name:

Title:

STATE OF FLORIDA )
) SS:

COUNTY OF ORANGE )

Before me on ____________, 2018, personally appeared _________________________, who

___ is personally known to me or _____ has produced _________________________ as

identification, and who acknowledged that he/she signed the above instrument as his/her free

and voluntary act.

________________________________
NOTARY PUBLIC OF FLORIDA

Print
Name:_______________________

18
 APK-17-009 2-13-18

68



Commission No.:__________________
AFFIX NOTARY STAMP Expires:__________________________

Exhibit A– Legal Description of City Property

19
 APK-17-009 2-13-18

69



Exhibit B – Legal Description of Applicant Property

PARCEL A:

PARCEL 1:

Northeast 1/4 of Southwest 1/4 of Section 8, Township 21 South, Range 28 East, LESS: Begin at
Southwest corner of Northeast 1/4 of Southwest 1/4, Section 8, Township 21 South, Range 28 East, run
North 343 feet, East 400 feet, South 343 feet, West 400 feet to Point of Beginning, Orange County,
Florida.

PARCEL 2:

West 1/2 of the Northwest 1/4 of Southeast 1/4 of Section 8, Township 21 South, Range 28 East, Orange
County, Florida.

AND

Begin at the Northwest corner of the East half of the Southwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 8,
Township 21 South, Range 28 East, run North 89°33'48" East 950 feet; thence South 00°30'54" West 35
feet; thence South 89°33'48" West 950 feet; thence North 00°30'54" East 35 feet to Point of Beginning,
Orange County, Florida.

AND

The East half of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4, ALSO that portion of the South 12 acres of the
West half of the Northeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 South of center line of lake, LESS the following
described parcel: Begin at the Southeast corner of the West half of the Northeast 1/4 of the Southeast
1/4, Section 8, Township 21 South, Range 28 East, run South 89°33'48" West along the South line of said
West half 328.92 feet; thence North 11°16'48" East 580 feet to the central line of lake; thence South
44°53'28" East along central line of lake, 306.45 feet to the East line of said West half; thence South
along East line of said West half 350 feet to Point of Beginning, Section 8, Township 21 South, Range 28
East, Orange County, Florida, AND Commence East 1/4 corner of Section 8, Township 21 South, Range
28 East, run thence South 89°30'41" West 1070.14 feet, South 00°18'05" West 388.7 feet to the Point of
Beginning; run thence South 00°18'05" West 25 feet; thence South 89°30'41" West 247.92 feet; thence
South 00°21'52" West 115.13 feet; thence North 89°30'41" East 307.92 feet; thence North 00°18'05" East
140.13 feet; thence West to Point of Beginning, LESS South 383.7 feet of the North 413.7 feet of the East
100 feet of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 8, Township 21 South, Range 28 East,
Orange County, Florida. LESS any portion of the above description lying within the boundary of Lake
Marshall Drive as described in Quit Claim Deed recorded in Official Records Book 3726, Page 2538, of the
Public Records of Orange County, Florida.

ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT FROM THE ABOVE DESCRIPTIONS, any portion lying within the property
described in Stipulated Order of Taking recorded in Official Records Book 5461, Page 2470, of the Public
Records of Orange County, Florida.

PARCEL 3:

The Northwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 and the Southwest 1/4 of the Southwest
1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 8, Township 21 South, Range 28 East, Orange County, Florida.

PARCEL B

20
 APK-17-009 2-13-18

70



Exhibit B – Legal Description of Applicant Property

LYDA PARCEL:

The East 1/2 of the Southwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4, Section 8, Township 21 South, Range 28 East,
Orange County, Florida, lying South of Masek Road now known as St. Johns Road.

AND

The West 1/2 of the Southeast 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4, Section 8, Township 21 South, Range 28 East,
Orange County, Florida, lying South of Masek Road, now known as St. Johns Road.

CITIZENS PARCEL C:

The South Half (S ½) of the Northwest Quarter (NW ¼) of the Northeast Quarter (NE ¼) of Northeast
Quarter (NE ¼) of Section Seventeen (17) Township Twenty-One South of Range Twenty-Eight East,
Orange County, Florida.

AND

The North Half (N ½) of the Northwest Quarter (NW ¼) of Northeast Quarter (NE ¼) of Northeast
Quarter (NE ¼) of Section Seventeen (17) Township Twenty-One South of Range Twenty Eight East,
Orange County, Florida

AND

That part of the Southeast Quarter (SE ¼) of Northeast Quarter (NE ¼) of Section 17, Township 21
South, Range 28 East, Orange County, Florida, lying West of State Road 429 and less portion thereof
described in Order of Taking recorded in Official Records Book 5487, Page 1547, Public Records of
Orange County, Florida.

AND

That part of the East Half (E ½) of the Northeast Quarter (NE ¼) of Northeast Quarter (NE ¼), Section
17, Township 21 South, Range 28 East, Orange County, Florida, lying West of State Road 429 right of
way, and less portion described in Order of Taking recorded in Official Records Book 5487, Page 1547,
Public Records of Orange County, Florida.

AND

The Southwest Quarter (SW ¼) of the Northeast Quarter (NE ¼), of the Northeast Quarter (NE ¼), of
Section 17, Township 21 South, Range 28 East, Orange County, Florida; less portion described in Order of
Taking recorded in Official Records Book 5487, Page 1547, Public Records of Orange County, Florida.

AND

All that portion of the East Half ½ (E½) of the Southeast Quarter (SE ¼) of the Southeast Quarter
(SE¼) of Section 8, Township 21 South, Range 28 East, lying South of the County Clay Road as now

21
 APK-17-009 2-13-18

71



existing, in Orange County, Florida; and lying West of lands described in Order of Taking recorded in
Official Records Book 5487, Page 1547 and less right of way described in Official Records Book 1981,
Page 295, Public Records of Orange County, Florida.

22
 APK-17-009 2-13-18

72



Exhibit C– Location Map

23
 APK-17-009 2-13-18

73



E
xhibit
D –
Capital
Contri
bution
Calcul
ation

24
 APK-17-009 2-13-18

74



25
 APK-17-009 2-13-18

75



Exhibit E – Prepaid Impact Fee Form

26
 APK-17-009 2-13-18

76



27
 APK-17-009 2-13-18

77



28
 APK-17-009 2-13-18

78



29
 APK-17-009 2-13-18

79



Document comparison by Workshare Compare on Friday, March 02, 2018
8:44:50 AM

Input:

Document 1 ID interwovenSite://HKDMS/Active/55436256/4

Description
#55436256v4<Active> - AV Homes - Johns Road, Apopka
- Capacity Enhancement Agreement

Document 2 ID interwovenSite://HKDMS/Active/55436256/5

Description
#55436256v5<Active> - AV Homes - Johns Road, Apopka
- Capacity Enhancement Agreement

Rendering set Standard

Legend:

Insertion 

Deletion 

Moved from 

Moved to 

Style change

Format change

Moved deletion 

Inserted cell

Deleted cell

Moved cell

Split/Merged cell

Padding cell

Statistics:

Count

Insertions 5

Deletions 4

Moved from 1

Moved to 1

Style change 0

Format changed 0

Total changes 11

80



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: March 21, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Vicinity Map 

X OTHER: Final Dev. Plan  Aerial Map 

   Building Renderings 

   Final Development Plan/Plat 

   Lake Gem CP Plat 

   Landscape Plan 

     
SUBJECT:  LAKE GEM COMMERCE PARK – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND 

PLAT (SUBDIVISION) 
    
REQUEST:  APPROVAL OF THE FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN AND PLAT FOR 

LAKE GEM COMMERCE PARK 
 

SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER/APPLICANT:  Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC c/o Michael R. Cooper 
 
PROJECT ENGINEER:  Al Tehrani, P.E. 

LOCATION:    511 and 611 Marshall Lake Road  

EXISTING USE:   Vacant 

FUTURE LAND USE:  Industrial 

ZONING:    PUD (Planned Unit Development)/I-1 

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: Commerce Park with 12 Lots 

     Minimum lot width:  160 feet; minimum lot size:  32,597 square feet 

 

TRACT SIZE:    28.74 +/- acres 

FLOOR AREA RATIO (FAR): Maximum 0.60 FAR 

 
FUNDING SOURCE:   

 

N/A 

 

DISTRIBUTION 

 

Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director 

Commissioners (4)    HR Director   City Clerk 

City Administrator Irby   IT Director   Fire Chief 

Community Development Director  Police Chief   Recreation Director 

 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\SUBDIVISION PLANS\2018\Lake Gem Commerce\5 City Council Hearings 81



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 21, 2018 
LAKE GEM COMMERCE PARK – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 
PAGE 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Railroad/Commercial Railroad/I-1 Railroad/Vacant 

East (City) Industrial I-1 Vacant 

South (City) Industrial Right-of-Way/I-1 Marshall Lake Road/Single Family 

Residence/Horticulture/Vacant 

West (City) Conservation\Industrial I-1 Vacant 

 
Project Use:  The Lake Gem Commerce Park Final Development Plan/Plat proposes the development of 

12 industrial lots.  Located within the PUD/I-1 zoning district, the plan shows a minimum lot width of 160 

feet and with a no individual lot being less than 32,597 square feet.  Lake Gem Commerce must comply 

with the development standards for I-1 zoning district but allowed for a building height of up 50 feet. 

 

Preliminary and/or Final Development Plans shall be provided at the time of the each lot development and 

comply with the most current Land Development Code and other City standards. 

 

The minimum setbacks applicable to this project are: 

 

Setback 
Min. 

Standard 

Front* 25’ 

Side 10’ 

Rear 10’* 

Corner 25’ 

*30 feet setback from residential uses or zoning districts. 

 
Access:  Ingress/egress access points for the development will be via full access onto Marshall Lake Road. 
 
Stormwater: The stormwater management system includes an on-site retention area.  The stormwater pond 
is located within Tract B. The stormwater pond design meets the City’s Land Development Code 
requirements. 
 
Buffer:  A 25-foot wide landscaped buffer is provided along Marshall Lake Road, as required by Code, and 

on the boundary adjacent to the existing railroad.  The plan also shows a 10-foot wide buffer along the 

eastern boundary.   

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The County was notified at the time of the subdivision plan and 

plat for this property through the DRC agenda distribution.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

March 13, 2018 - Planning Commission, 5:30 p.m. 

March 21, 2018 - City Council, 7:00 p.m.  

 

 

 82



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 21, 2018 
LAKE GEM COMMERCE PARK – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 
PAGE 3 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  

 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval of Lake Gem Commerce Park Final 

Development Plan/Plat subject to the final review by the City surveyor and City Engineer prior to recording 

the plat and findings of this staff report. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on March 13, 2018, found the Lake Gem Commerce Park Final 

Development Plan and Plat consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and 

unanimously recommended approval of the Lake Gem Commerce Park Final Development Plan/Plat, 

subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

City Council Recommended Motion:  Approve the Lake Gem Commerce Park Final Development Plan 

and Plat, subject to the findings of this staff report. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

  

83



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 21, 2018 
LAKE GEM COMMERCE PARK – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 
PAGE 4 

 

Property Industrial Enterprises, LLC c/o Michael R. Cooper 

Ali Tehrani, P.E. 

Lake Gem Commerce Park Subdivision 

28.74 +/- acres 

Proposed number of lots:  12 

Parcel ID Nos.:  09-21-28-0000-00-011 and 08-21-28-0000-00-029 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
84



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 21, 2018 
LAKE GEM COMMERCE PARK – FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN/PLAT 
PAGE 5 

 

 

AERIAL MAP 

 

 

 

 85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: March 21, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Ordinance No. 2605 

X OTHER: Ordinance  “A” - 1-Mile Radius, WPIVP1 Map1 

   “B” - Objectives 17 - 20 - FLUE 

  
SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2605 - COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – ADMINISTRATIVE POLICY 

AMENDMENT - FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT, POLICY 20.10 AND TABLE 20.10. 
    
REQUEST:  SECOND READING - ORDINANCE 2605 -- AMENDING THE FUTURE LAND USE 

ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF 
APOPKA; CHANGING POLICY 20.10 AND TABLE 20.10.  

  
SUMMARY:  

 

The current minimum Floor Area Ratio (FAR) for the Village Center is 0.30 FAR. Planning staff recommends a 

reduction in the FAR standard from 0.30 to 0.15 FAR until 4,000 residential units are constructed within the area 

comprising the one-mile radius from the Kelly Park Road Interchange at the Wekiva Parkway. 

 

For the Village Center defined within the Future Land Use Element, a minimum and maximum floor area ratio are 

required to encourage commercial and office buildings and uses to concentrate within higher intensity clusters.  In 

theory, the intent is to concentrate commercial buildings into typically smaller development site to promote a more 

walkable urban environment. To influence development to achieve the desired urban character, a minimum floor area 

ratio is required for the Village Center.  The Village Center is the areas surrounding the Plymouth-Sorrento 

Road\Kelly Park Road intersection and the Golden Gem\Kelly Park Road Intersection, as illustrated in Exhibit “B”.   

 

Presently, a concentration of residential homes within one mile radial distance from the Village Center does not create 

market characteristics capable to support a population density and patronage necessary for higher intensity retail 

commercial.  In other words, there are not enough homes or offices (ie, day-time and night-time population density) 

within reasonable walking distance from the Village Centers, at this time or anticipated within the next three years to 

justify a reduction in parking spaces and the area to accommodate them.  Retail customers will have to be captured 

from a wider market area than a one-mile radial distance to support the financial feasibility of operating retail within 

the Village Centers.  Once a sufficient number of homes and business and professional offices are constructed near 

the Village Centers, residents and employees will be able to walk or ride bikes to commercial retail, allowing parking 

spaces to be replaced by more retails buildings or parking garages. 

  

PROPOSED POLICY TEXT AMENDMENT:  Exhibit “A” of Ordinance 2605 includes the proposed 

amendment to Policy 20.10 of the Future Land Use Element. 

  
FUNDING SOURCE:   N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
 

                                                 
1 WPIVP – Wekiva Parkway Interchange Vision Plan 

113



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 21, 2018 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN TEXT AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 

 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

October 10, 2017 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm)  

November 1, 2017 – City Council 1st Reading (1:30 pm) Transmittal 

March 21, 2018 – City Council 2nd Reading & Adoption (7:00 pm) 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

September 29, 2017 – Public Hearing Notice 

October 20, 2017 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee recommend approval of the amendment to the City of Apopka 

Comprehensive Plan, Future Land Use Element, Policy 20.10 to reduce minimum floor area ratio within the Village 

Center Character District from a minimum of 0.30 FAR to 0.15 FAR, as shown in Exhibit “A”. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting on October 10, 2017, recommended approval (5-1) of the amendment to 

the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, Future Land Use Element, Policy 20.10 to reduce minimum floor area ratio 

within the Village Center Character District from a minimum of 0.30 FAR to 0.15 FAR, as shown in Exhibit “A”. 

 

The City Council, at its meeting on November 1, 2017, accepted the First Reading of Ordinance No. 2605 and 

authorized transmittal to the Florida Department of Economic Opportunity. 

 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2605. 

 

Note: This item is considered legislative and establishes general policy.  The staff report and its findings are 

to be incorporated into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 
 

114



ORDINANCE NO. 2605 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING 

POLICY 20.10 AND TABLE 20.10; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 

AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, on October 2, 1991 adopted 

Ordinance No. 653 which adopted the Comprehensive Plan for the City of Apopka; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has subsequently amended the Comprehensive Plan for 

the City of Apopka, most recently through Ordinance No. 2538; and 

 

  

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s Local Planning Agency and the City Council have 

conducted the prerequisite advertised public hearings, as per Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, 

relative to the transmittal and adoption of this ordinance and the requirements for amendment to 

the Comprehensive Plan.   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows:  

 

 SECTION I: The City of Apopka hereby amends the Future Land Use Element of the 

adopted Comprehensive Plan as follows:   

 

 Policy 20.10 And Table 20.10 of the Future Land Use Map is hereby amended for the 

property identified in Exhibit “A” of this Ordinance, and incorporated herein by reference.  

 

 SECTION II: This Ordinance shall become effective following adoption and upon 

issuance by the Department of Economic Opportunity or the Administration Commission, as 

may be applicable, a final order finding the amendment to be in compliance in accordance with 

Chapter 163.3184.  

 

 SECTION III: If any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance 

proves to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the 

validity, force, or effect of any other section or portion of a section or subsection or part of this 

ordinance.  

 

 SECTION IV:  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

 

SECTION V: This Ordinance shall become effective upon issuance of a final order by the 

Florida Department of Economic Opportunity finding the plan amendment in compliance in 

accordance with s.163.3184 (2)(a), Florida Statute. 

115



ORDINANCE NO. 2605 

PAGE 2 

 

 

 ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 

21st day of March, 2018. 

 

 

READ FIRST TIME: November 1, 2017 

  

READ SECOND TIME 

AND ADOPTED: 

 

March 21, 2018 

 

 

 

_______________________________________                                                                       

       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                            

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Linda Goff, City Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

_______________________________                                                                       

Cliff B. Shepard, City Attorney 

 

DULY ADVERTISED FOR PUBLIC HEARING: October 20, 2017, March 9, 2018 

116



 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

(New language denoted with an underscore) 

(Page 1 of 2) 

 

Policy 20.10 

 

The City shall ensure that areas of greatest density and 

intensity within the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Plan Area are 

located at and between the two major intersection nodes at Kelly 

Park Road/Golden Gem Road and Kelly Park Road/Plymouth-Sorrento 

Road, but not upon areas of Karst formations. The Wekiva 

Interchange Form-Based Code shall require a mix of uses 

consistent with Wekiva Interchange Plan and shall establish a 

system of transfer of development rights to encourage increased 

density and intensity within Wekiva Parkway Interchange Plan 

Area. Development at the outer edges of the mixed-use area shall 

maintain compatibility with the lands adjacent to the Wekiva 

Interchange Plan Area by reducing density and intensity or by 

providing substantial buffers, landscaping, height, and lighting 

controls. The City shall also allow transfer of development 

rights to maintain 20% open space in the overall Study Area. 

Densities and intensities allowed within the Wekiva Parkway 

Interchange Plan Area character districts shall be as shown on 

Table 20.10:  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

117



(page 2 of 2) 
 
 
 
 

** Upon the effective date of Ordinance 2605 the minimum floor-area-ratio shall be 0.15 for the 

Village Center. The Village Center minimum floor area ratio shall increase to 0.30 FAR after 4,000 

new dwelling units are constructed after the effective date of Ordinance 2605 and within the one-

mile radius area appearing in the Wekiva Parkway Interchange Area Vision Plan Map.  

118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



 
CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: March 21, 2018 
X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 
 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Land Use Report 
X OTHER: Ordinance   Vicinity Map 
    Future Land Use Map 
    Zoning Map 
    Adjacent Uses 
    Ordinance No. 2635 

  
SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2635 – COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL SCALE – FUTURE 

LAND USE AMENDMENT – KENNEY HARRY CHARLES MCALISTER 
    
REQUEST:  FIRST READING - ORDINANCE NO. 2635 – COMPREHENSIVE PLAN – SMALL 

SCALE – FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT – KENNEY HARRY CHARLES 
MCALISTER FROM “COUNTY” RURAL (1 DU/10 AC) TO “CITY” 
COMMERCIAL (MAX. 0.25 FAR); AND HOLD OVER FOR SECOND READING 
& ADOPTION. 

  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER: Kenney Harry Charles McAllister 
 
APPLICANT: Tannath Design, Inc., c/o Brian Potts, P.E. 
 
LOCATION: Northwest corner of the N. Hermit Smith Road and U.S. 441 road intersection 
 
PARCEL ID NUMBER: 01-21-27-0000-00-001 
 
EXISTING USE: Woodlands 
 
CURRENT ZONING: “County” A-1 (ZIP) 
 
PROPOSED 
DEVELOPMENT:  Convenience Market w/ vehicle fuel service (This parcel will be used for 

landscape buffer area.) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: “City” PUD (Note: this Future Land Use amendment request is being processed 

along with a request to change the zoning classification from “County” A-1 (ZIP)  
to “City” PUD (Planned Unit Development). 

 
TRACT SIZE: 0.04 +/- acres  
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT: EXISTING: Vacant 

PROPOSED:  Up to 479 sq. ft. service station  
  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING/Small Scale Flu Amends/2018/Kenney Harry Charles McAllister 
  

138



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 21, 2018 

MCALLISTER– SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 2 
 

ADDITIONAL COMMENTS:  The subject parcel was annexed into the city on January 17, 2018 by 

Ordinance Number 2627.  Presently, the subject property does not have a “city” future land use designation 

or “city” zoning classification assigned. The applicant’s intent for the “Commercial” Future Land Use 

Designation is to incorporate this parcel with the north-adjacent parcel, 1102 Hermit Smith Road. The 

applicant is applying for “Planned Unit Development” for the two parcels to accommodate a service station.  

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is consistent with the 

Commercial Future Land Use designation.  Site development cannot exceed the intensity allowed by the 

Future Land Use policies.   Planning & Zoning staff determines that the below policies support a 

Commercial FLUM designation at the subject site:  

 
Future Land Use Element 
 

1. Policy 3.1.i  
 
Commercial 
 

Primary uses shall be for business, commerce, and convenience shopping which may be neighborhood or 
community oriented. The maximum floor area ratio shall be .25 gross floor area. Institutional land uses of 
less than five acres; and public facilities or utilities of less than five acres. 
Planned Unit Development uses may include: (Policy 3.1.i) 
 

1. All primary uses 
 

2. All Special Exception uses 
 

3. Multifamily Development of up to fifteen dwelling units per acre, when located within a primary 
use structure 
 

4. Other uses deemed compatible with and complimentary to the other proposed master planned uses 
and the surrounding neighborhoods.  

 
SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  Because this request represents a change to a non-residential future 
land use designation and zoning classification, school capacity determination by Orange County Public 
Schools is not required. 
 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION:  The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 

any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on February 12, 2018.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE:  

March 13, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

March 21, 2018 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

April 4, 2018 – City Council (1:30 pm) – 2nd Reading and Adoption  

 

DULY ADVERTISED:  

March 2, 2018 – Public Notice and Notification (Apopka Chief, Letters, Poster) 

March 23, 2018 – Public Notice (Apopka Chief)  

 

  

139



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 21, 2018 

MCALLISTER– SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 3 
 

   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee recommends approval to transmit a change in Future Land Use 

from “County” Rural to “City” Commercial for the property owned by Kenney Harry Charles McAllister 

Trust, subject to the information and findings in the staff report. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on March 13, 2018, found the proposed Future Land Use 
amendment consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding 
area; and unanimously recommended approval of the change of Future Land Use Designation from 
“County” Rural to “City” Commercial, subject to the findings of the Staff Report. 
 
Recommended Motion: Accept the first reading of Ordinance 2635, and hold over for second reading and 
adoption on April 4, 2018.  
 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

 

140



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 21, 2018 

MCALLISTER– SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 4 
 

LAND USE REPORT 

 

I. RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) “County” Rural “County” A-1 (ZIP Woodlands 

East (City) “County” Rural “City” A-1 (ZIP) Woodlands/Grasslands 

South (County) Rural (1 D/U per 10 Acres) “County” C-3 & R-3 Single-family homes 

West (City) “County” Rural “County” A-1 (ZIP) Woodlands 

 
The concept plan shows proposed accesses on S.R. 441 and Hermit Smith Road. 
 
II. LAND USE ANALYSIS 
 
The subject property is located on a site that is ideal for commercial use, which makes the request for a 
Commercial future land use designation consistent with the Comprehensive Plan policies listed above, as 
well as the general future land use character of the surrounding area. 
 
Properties to the south and west are developed as existing single-family homes, which properties to the east 
and north are vacant, but have a future land use designation and zoning classification that permit single-
family residential.  
 
The proposed Residential Low Suburban future land use designation is consistent with the general future 
land use character of the surrounding area.  
 
 Wekiva River Protection Area: No 
 Area of Critical State Concern: No 
 DRI / FQD: No 
 
 JPA: The City of Apopka and Orange County entered into a Joint Planning Area (JPA) agreement 
on October 26, 2004.  The subject property is located within the “Northern Area” of the JPA.  The proposed 
FLUM Amendment request for a change from “County” Rural (0-10 du/ac) to “City” Commercial (Max. 0.25 
FAR) is consistent with the terms of the JPA (Second Amendment).  Tannath Design, Inc., is the applicant 
of the proposed future land use amendment and proposed change of zoning for the Property, and has been 
notified of the hearing schedule.   
 
 Transportation:  Road access to the site is from West Orange Blossom Trail to the South and Hermit 
Smith Road to the East. 
 
 Wekiva Parkway and Protection Act: The proposed amendment has been evaluated against the 
adopted Wekiva Study Area Comprehensive Plan policies.  The proposed amendment is consistent with the 
adopted mandates and requirements.  The proposed Future Land Use Map (FLUM) amendment has been 
reviewed against the best available data, with regard to aquifer and groundwater resources.  The City of 
Apopka's adopted Comprehensive Plan addresses aquifer recharge and stormwater run-off through the 
following policies: 

 
 Future Land Use Element, Policies 4.16, 14.4, 15.1, 16.2 and 18.2 
 Infrastructure Element, Policies 1.5.5, 4.2.7, 4.4, 4.4.1, 4.4.2 and 4.4.3 
 Conservation Element, Policy 3.18 

 
 

141



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 21, 2018 

MCALLISTER– SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 5 
 

Karst Features: The Karst Topography Features Map from the Florida Department of Environmental 
Protection shows that there are karst features in the vicinity of this property.   
 
 Analysis of the character of the Property:  The current use of the Property is vacant and heavily 
wooded. 
 
 Analysis of the relationship of the amendment to the population projections: The proposed future 
land use designation for the property is Commercial (max FAR 0.25).  Based on the housing element of the 
City's Comprehensive Plan, this amendment will not increase the City’s future population 
  
CALCULATIONS: 
ADOPTED: 1 Unit(s) x 2.659 p/h = 3 persons 
PROPOSED: N/A, no residential 
 
 Housing Needs: This amendment will not negatively impact the housing needs as projected in the 
Comprehensive Plan.   
 
 Habitat for species listed as endangered, threatened or of special concern: A habitat study is required 
for developments greater than ten (10) acres in size.  At the time the Master Site Plan or Preliminary 
Development Plan is submitted to the City, the development applicant must conduct a species survey and 
submit a habitat management plan if any threatened or endangered species are identified within the project 
site. 
 
 Transportation: The City of Apopka is a Transportation Concurrency Exception Area.  Refer to 
Chapter 3 of the City of Apopka 2010 Comprehensive Plan. 
  
Sanitary Sewer Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard:  None; 81 GPD/Capita ; 81 

GPD / Capita 

 

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of Apopka 

 

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:    196  GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:    72  GPD 

 

4. Capacity available:  Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation: 81  GPD/Capita 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  81 GPD/Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result if proposed amendment: 

None 

 

 Potable Water Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; current LOS; and LOS standard: None; 177 GPD/Capita ; 177 

GPD / Capita 

  

 If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider:  City of Apopka 

142



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 21, 2018 

MCALLISTER– SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 6 
 

  

2. Projected total demand under existing designation:    210  GPD 

 

3. Projected total demand under proposed designation:   96  GPD 

 

4. Capacity available: Yes 

 

5. Projected LOS under existing designation:  177  GPD / Capita 

 

6. Projected LOS under proposed designation:  177  GPD / Capita 

 

7. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 

amendment: None 

 

8. Parcel located within the reclaimed water service area:  Yes 

 

 Solid Waste 

 

1. Facilities serving the site:  City of Apopka 

 

2. If the site is not currently served, please indicate the designated service provider: City of 

Apopka 

 

3. Projected LOS under existing designation:   12  lbs/  day 

 

4. Projected LOS under proposed designation:   1  lbs /  day 

 

5. Improved/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 

amendment: None  

 

 This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 

development approval. 

 

 Infrastructure Information 

 

 Water treatment plant permit number: CUP No. 3217 

 

 Permitting agency: St. John’s River Water Management District 

 

 Permitted capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  9.353  MGD 

 

 Total design capacity of the water treatment plant(s):  33.696  MGD 

 

 Availability of distribution lines to serve the property: Yes 

 

 Availability of reuse distribution lines available to serve the property: Yes 

 

 

 
143



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 21, 2018 

MCALLISTER– SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 7 
 

 Drainage Analysis 

 

1. Facilities serving the site:   None 

 

2. Projected LOS under existing designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm  

 

3. Projected LOS under proposed designation: 100 year – 24 hour design storm 

 

4. Improvement/expansion: On site retention / detention ponds 

 

 Recreation 

 

1. Facilities serving the site; LOS standard: City of Apopka Parks System ;  3 acre / 1000 

capita 

 

2. Projected facility under existing designation:   0.009  acres 

 

3. Projected facility under proposed designation:  N/A acres 

 

4. Improvement/expansions already programmed or needed as a result of the proposed 

amendment: N/A 
 
 Standards set forth in the City’s Land Development Code will require any development plans to provide 
parkland and recreation facilities and open space for residents residing with the new development. 
 
This initial review does not preclude conformance with concurrency requirements at the time of 
development approval. 
  

144



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 21, 2018 

MCALLISTER– SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 8 
 

Kenney Harry Charles McAllister 

0.04 +/- acres  
Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From: “County” Rural  
To: “City” Commercial 

Proposed Change of Zoning: 
From: A-1 (ZIP) 

To: PUD 
Parcel ID #: 01-21-27-0000-00-001 

 
 

VICINITY MAP  

 
145



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 21, 2018 

MCALLISTER– SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

 

 

 

FUTURE LAND USE MAP 

 

 
 

  

146



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 21, 2018 

MCALLISTER– SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 10 
 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 

 
 

 

 

 

 
147



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 21, 2018 

MCALLISTER– SMALL SCALE FUTURE LAND USE AMENDMENT 
PAGE 11 
 

 

 

 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
148



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2635 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, AMENDING 

THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT OF THE APOPKA 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF APOPKA; CHANGING THE 

FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION FROM “COUNTY” RURAL (1 DU\10 

AC) TO “CITY” COMMERCIAL (MAX. FAR 0.25) FOR CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED WEST OF HERMIT SMITH ROAD 

AND NORTH OF ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL, COMPRISING 0.04 

ACRES, MORE OR LESS AND OWNED BY KENNEY HARRY CHARLES 

MCALLISTER; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING 

FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Apopka adopted the Apopka Comprehensive 
Plan by Ordinance No. 653 on October 2, 1991, pursuant to Section 163.3184, Florida Statutes 
and most recently amended it by Ordinance No. 2606 on December 20, 2017; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka’s local planning agency (Planning Commission) has, in 
preparation of the amended version of the Apopka Comprehensive Plan, analyzed the proposed 
amendment pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, F.S., found it to be consistent with the intent of the 
Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and held public hearings providing for full public participation. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I. Purpose and Intent. 
 
 This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the authority 
set out in, the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation 
Act, Sections 163.3184 and 163.3187, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section II. Future Land Use Element. 
  
 Page 1-15 (Map 1-3) of the Future Land Use Element of the City of Apopka 
Comprehensive Plan, as most recently amended by Ordinance No. 2606, is amended in its entirety 
to change the land use from “County” Rural (1 du\10 ac) to “City” Commercial (Max. FAR 0.25), 
for certain real property generally located west of Hermit Smith Road and north of U.S. 441,  
comprising 2.45 acres more or less, and owned by Kenney Harry Charles McAllister; as further 
described in Exhibit “A” attached hereto. 
 
 Section III. Applicability and Effect. 
 
 The applicability and effect of the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan shall be as provided 
by the Local Government Comprehensive Planning and Land Development Regulation Act, 
Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, Florida Statutes. 
 
 Section IV.  Severability. 
 
 If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and 
portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 

149



 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2635 
PAGE 2 
 
 Section V.  The Community Development Director is hereby authorized to amend the 
Future Land Use to comply with this ordinance. 
 
 Section VI. Effective Date.   This Ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 
 
 ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Apopka, Florida, this 
____ day of ______________, 2018. 
 

 
READ FIRST TIME:  

 
March 21, 2018 

 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
April 4, 2018 

 
 
 
 ______________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                         
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED FOR HEARING: March 2, 2018 

      March 23, 2018 

  

150



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
ORDINANCE NO. 2635 

Kenney Harry Charles McAllister 
Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From: “County” Rural (1 du\ 10 ac) 
To: “City” Commercial (max 0.25 FAR)  

Parcel ID #:  01-21-27-0000-00-001 
Acreage: 2.45 +/- 

 

 

151



CITY OF APOPKA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: March 21, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER:  Ordinance  Vicinity Map 

    Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 

    Ordinance No. 2636 
  
SUBJECT:    ORDINANCE NO. 2636 – CHANGE OF ZONING – KENNEY HARRY CHARLES 

MCALLISTER 

    

REQUEST:  FIRST READING – ORDINANCE NO. 2636 – CHANGE OF ZONING – KENNEY 

HARRY CHARLES MCALLISTER – FROM “COUNTY” A-1 (ZIP) TO “CITY” 

PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD/ COMMERCIAL); AND HOLD OVER 

FOR SECOND READING AND ADOPTION. 
  
SUMMARY:  
 
OWNER:    Kenney Harry Charles McAllister 
 
APPLICANT:    Tannath Design, Inc., c/o Bryan Potts, P.E. 
 
LOCATION:  Northwest corner of N. Hermit Smith Rd and U.S. 441 road intersection 
 
PARCEL ID NUMBER:  01-21-27-0000-00-001 
 
EXISTING USE:   Vacant-Woodlands  
 
CURRENT ZONING:   “County” A-1  
 
DEVELOPMENT POTENTAIL: Maximum 482 sq. ft. commercial use (Max. 0.25 floor area ratio) 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: “City” PUD (Planned Unit Development) (Note: this Change of Zoning 

request is being processed along with a request to amend the Future Land 
Use from “County” Rural (0-10 du/ac) to Commercial (Max. 0.25 FAR) and 
an application for annexation. 

 
TRACT SIZE:    0.04 +/- acres 
 
MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE 
DEVELOPMENT UNDER  EXISTING: Vacant 
ZONING DISTRICT:                          PROPOSED: Up to 479 sq. ft. 
  
FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 
  
DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 
 
 
G:\CommDev\PLANNING ZONING\REZONING\2018\MCALLISTER 
 

152



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 21, 2018 

MCALLISTER– CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 
ADDITIONAL COMMENTS: Presently, the subject property has not yet been assigned a “City” zoning 
category. The applicant is requesting the City to assign a zoning classification of PUD (Planned Unit 
Development) to the property, which will be incorporated with the PUD in the north adjacent parcel.  The 
subject parcel was annexed into the city on January 17, 2018 by Ordinance Number 2627. 
 
A request to assign a change of zoning to PUD is compatible to the adjacent zoning classifications and with 
the general character of abutting properties and surrounding area. The change of zoning request is being 
processed in conjunction with a future land use amendment from “County” Rural to “City” Commercial. 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The existing and proposed use of the property is consistent 
with the proposed Commercial (Max. 25% Floor Area Ratio) Future Land Use designation and the City’s 
proposed Planned Unit Development Zoning classification. Site development cannot exceed the intensity 
allowed by the Future Land Use policies.  
 
PUD CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL:   

1. This Planned Unit Development will be incorporated to the final development plan for adjacent PUD, 
located at 1102 Hermit Smith Rd, through a parcel consolidation. 

2. The use for this property shall be used only for open space and landscape buffering for the north 
adjacent development at 1102 Hermit Smith Road (Parcel No. 36-20-27-0000-00-024) 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  As the proposed use of the site is for landscaping and open space for 
a commercial use, no impact will occur to school enrollment for public schools. 
 
ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: The JPA requires the City to notify the County 30 days before 
any public hearing or advisory board.  The City properly notified Orange County on February 12, 2018. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 
Planning Commission, March 13, 2018 (5:30 pm) 
City Council, March 21, 2018 (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 
City Council, April 4, 2018 (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 
 
DULY ADVERTISED:  
February 23, 2018 -- Public Notice and Notification- (Apopka Chief, letter, posting) 
March 23, 2018 – Public Notice (Apopka Chief) 
   
RECOMMENDATION ACTION:  
 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed amendment consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, recommending approval of the proposed 
Change of Zoning from “County” A-1 to “City” PUD for the property owned by Kenney Harry Charles 
McAllister, and located at 3591 W. Orange Blossom Trail. 
 
The Planning Commission, at its meeting on March 13, 2018, found the proposed amendment consistent 
with the Comprehensive Plan and compatible with the character of the surrounding areas, and recommended 
approval of the proposed Change of Zoning from “County” A-1 to “City” PUD for the property owned by 
Kenney Harry Charles McAllister, and located at 3591 W. Orange Blossom Trail. 
 
Recommended Motion: Accept the first reading of Ordinance 2635, and hold over for second reading and 
adoption on April 4, 2018.  
 
Note: This item is considered Quasi-Judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 
into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 153



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 21, 2018 

MCALLISTER– CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

ZONING REPORT 
 
RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) “County” Rural “City” A-1 (ZIP) Woodlands\Proposed RaceTrac 

East (City) “County” Rural A-1 (ZIP) Woodlands/Grasslands 

South (County) Rural (1 D/U per 10 Acres) “County” C-3 & R-3 Single-Family Homes 

West (City) “County” Rural “County” A-1 (ZIP) Woodlands 

 

LAND USE & TRAFFIC  

COMPATIBILITY: The concept plan for the PUD proposes accesses on West Orange 

Blossom Trail and Hermit Smith Road.  

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN  

COMPLIANCE:  The proposed PUD zoning is consistent with the proposed Future 

Land Use designation, “Commercial” (Max. 25% FAR) and with the 

character of the surrounding area and future proposed development. 

Development Plans shall not exceed the density allowed in the 

adopted Future Land Use designation.   
  

BUFFERYARD  

REQUIREMENTS:    

1. Areas adjacent to all road rights-of-way shall provide a 

minimum ten-foot landscaped bufferyard. 

 

2. Areas adjacent to agricultural and residential uses or districts 

shall provide a minimum six-foot-high masonry wall within a 

ten-foot landscaped bufferyard. 

 

3. Areas adjacent to nonresidential uses or districts shall provide a 

minimum of five-foot landscaped bufferyard. 

 

4. Landscaping requirements for existing platted lots of record and 

structures may be approved in a lesser amount than required 

after review by the development review committee. 

 

154



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 21, 2018 

MCALLISTER– CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

Kenney Harry Charles McAllister 

0.04 +/- acres  
Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From: “County” Rural  
To: “City” Commercial 

Proposed Change of Zoning: 
From: A-1 (ZIP) 

To: PUD 
Parcel ID #: 01-21-27-0000-00-001 

 

VICINITY MAP 
  

155



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 21, 2018 

MCALLISTER– CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

 

 
ADJACENT ZONING MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

156



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 21, 2018 

MCALLISTER– CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

 

 

ADJACENT USES MAP 
  

 

 

 
 

157



ORDINANCE NO. 2636 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING 

THE ZONING FROM “COUNTY” A-1 TO “CITY” PLANNED UNIT 

DEVELOPMENT (PUD/COMMERCIAL) FOR CERTAIN REAL 

PROPERTY LOCATED AT 3591 W ORANGE BLOSSOM TRAIL, 

COMPRISING 0.04 ACRES MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY KENNEY 

HARRY CHARLES MCALLISTER; PROVIDING FOR DIRECTIONS TO 

THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, SEVERABILITY, 

CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest 

of the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the 

City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the City of Apopka has requested a change in zoning on said property as 

identified in Section I of this ordinance; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD/Commercial) zoning has 

been found to be consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka 

Land Development Code. 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, as follows: 

 

 Section I. That the zoning classification of the following described property be designated 

as Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with 

the following Master Plan provisions subject to the following zoning provisions: 

 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be: 

 
1. This Planned Unit Development will be incorporated to the final development plan for 

the adjacent property, located at 1102 Hermit Smith Road;  

2.   At the time of the Final Development Plan application for the abutting property at 1102 
Hermit Smith Road, the subject parcel and the abutting parcel under the same 
ownership shall be assembled through a parcel consolidation so the two parcels become 
one parcel. 

3. The use for this property shall be used only for open space and landscape buffering for 
the for the abutting property (Parcel No. 36-20-27-0000-00-024) that is subject to 
Ordinance Number 2620 (adopted February 7, 2018); 

B. The requisite Master Plan shall be submitted with or as part of the Final Development Plan 

application for the abutting property subject to Ordinance Number 2620; 

 

C. If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by the 

City within three years after approval of these Master Plan provisions, the approval of the 

Master Plan provisions will expire. At such time, the City Council may: 

 

1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Final Development 

Plan; 

 
158



ORDINANCE NO. 2636 

PAGE 2 

 

2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of 

new Master Plan provisions and any conditions of approval; or 

 

3. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

 

 Section II.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being 

situated in the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby Planned Unit Development (PUD/Commercial), 

as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code. 

 

 Legal Description: 

  

 NE ¼ OF NW ¼ N OF HIWAY (LESS E FT FOR RD & LESS ST RD) IN SEC 01-21-27 

Parcel I.D.: 01-21-27-0000-00-001 

Contains: 0.04 +/- Acres 

 

 Section III.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of 

the City of Apopka, Florida. 

 

 Section IV.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is 

hereby authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, 

Florida, to include said designation.   

 

 Section V. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves 

to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, 

force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 

 

 Section VI.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed.   

 

 Section VII.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption of Ordinance No. 2635. 

 
 
 

           Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
 
DULY ADVERTISED:  February 23, 2018; March 23, 2018 

 

READ FIRST TIME:  March 21, 2018 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     

 
 
April 4, 2018 

 
 
 
 

 

159



ORDINANCE NO. 2636 

PAGE 3 

 

 
 

Kenney Harry Charles McAllister 

0.04 +/- acres  
Proposed Small Scale Future Land Use Amendment: 

From: “County” Rural  
To: “City” Commercial 

Proposed Change of Zoning: 
From: A-1 (ZIP) 

To: PUD 
Parcel ID #: 01-21-27-0000-00-001 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 

160



CITY OF APOPKA 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
 
 

 CONSENT AGENDA  MEETING OF: March 21, 2018 

X PUBLIC HEARING  FROM: Community Development 

 SPECIAL REPORTS  EXHIBITS: Zoning Report 

X OTHER: PUD Master Plan   Vicinity Map 

    Adjacent Zoning Map 

    Adjacent Uses Map 

 
   Existing Use Map 

Ordinance No. 2637 

    Ex. A – Phase 1 Master Plan  

    Ex. B – Phase 1 Development Standards 

    Ex. C – Phase 1 Landscape/Rec. Plan 

    Ex. D – Phase 2 Master Plan 

    Ex. E – Phase 2 Development Standards 

    Ex. F – Phase 2 Landscape Plan 
  

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE NO. 2637 - CHANGE OF ZONING – LAKE MARSHALL 
SUBDIVISION, PHASES 1 AND 2 

 

REQUEST: FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE NO. 2637 – CHANGE OF ZONING – 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION, PHASES 1 AND 2, FROM PLANNED 

UNIT DEVELOPMENT, MIXED-EC, AND I-1 TO PLANNED UNIT 

DEVELOPMENT (NEW MASTER PLAN); AND HOLD OVER FOR 

SECOND READING AND ADOPTION. (PARCEL ID #S:  28-21-08-0000-00-

005; 28-21-08-0000-00-043; 28-21-17-0000-00-014) 
  
SUMMARY: 

 
OWNERS:    City of Apopka, James D & Deborah M. Lyda, and Citizens Bank of 

Florida 
 
APPLICANT:    Appian Engineering, LLC 
 
LOCATION:  South of Marshall Lake and West of SR 451 
 
EXISTING USE: Vacant 
 
FLUM DESIGNATION:  Low Density Residential, Mixed-Use 
 
CURRENT ZONING: PUD (Planned Unit Development), Mixed-EC (Mixed Employment 

Center), and I-1 (Restricted Industrial)   
 
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: 301 single family homes; developed in two phases 
 
PROPOSED ZONING: Planned Unit Development (PUD)  
 
TRACT SIZE:    154.18 +/- acres 
 

FUNDING SOURCE:  N/A 

 

DISTRIBUTION 
Mayor Kilsheimer    Finance Director  Public Services Director  
Commissioners      HR Director   Recreation Director    
City Administrator    IT Director   City Clerk  
Community Development Director  Police Chief   Fire Chief 161



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 21, 2018 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 2 
 

SUMMARY:  The subject property is approximately 154.17 acres in size and is zoned PUD (Planned Unit 

Development), Mixed-EC (Mixed Employment Center) and I-1 (Restricted Industrial), and a has a future 

land use designation of Low Density Residential and Mixed-Use. The subject property is comprised of three 

parcels and is located south of Marshall Lake and west of SR 451. The owners of the properties are the City 

of Apopka, James D. and Deborah M. Lyda, and Citizens Bank of Florida. Of the 154.17 acres, the City of 

Apopka owns 103 acres, Citizens Bank of Florida owns 39.9 acres, and Mr. and Mrs. Lyda own 11.28 acres. 

The proposed change of zoning to PUD is being requested by a representative of the prospective developer, 

Royal Oak Homes who proposes to construct 301 single-family units in two phases on the three parcels.  

 

On November 15, 2006, the City Council approved development of 102 single-family units on 83.28 acres 

of the property now owned by the City. This development received City Commission approval and 

subsequently was never developed. In 2007, the City of Apopka purchased the property. In 2017 after an 

advertised bid process, Royal Oak Homes agreed to purchase the property from the City contingent upon 

City Commission approval of a PUD rezoning and Preliminary Development Plan for the proposed 

development.  

 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:  The PUD Master Plan and Preliminary Development Plan propose 

development of the property in two phases as a private, gated residential community with a total of 301 

single-family homes. The subject property is located south of Marshall Lake and west of SR 451. The 

surrounding properties consist primarily of single-family residential, and agricultural uses. The 

development is proposed to be accessed via Johns Road. Adjacent to the west of the subject property is the 

Breckenridge subdivision. A gated access for emergency vehicle access will be provided between the two 

subdivisions. This access point will only be for emergency vehicles. In response to the Breckenridge 

homeowners association, pedestrian access will not be permitted between the two subdivisions.  

 

A.  Lot Size. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The developer is proposing 55-foot, 60-foot and 75-foot wide lots with a minimum average lot area of 7,425 

square feet for the 55-foot wide lots, 8,100 square feet for the 60-foot wide lots, and 10,875 square feet for 

the 75-foot wide lots. The minimum lot depth is proposed at 135-feet. The minimum living area is proposed 

at 1,800 square feet in Phase 1 and 1,600 square feet in Phase 2. Both phases of the subdivision will be 

accessed via Johns Road. Johns Road will terminate at the main entrance of the development, which will 

be accessed via a gate. The developer will be dedicating a 0.27 acre portion of right-of-way along Johns 

Road to the City. The subdivision will consist of private roads and infrastructure that is owned and 

maintained by the homeowners association.  

 

B. Deviations. The applicant is requesting four deviations to the City’s required development standards.  

For a PUD master plan, a deviation from the City’s Land Development Code does not represent a 

variance but a development standard or zoning condition unique to and approved as part of the Planned 

Unit Development zoning. PUD’s are required to satisfy the requirements of the land Development Code 

Typical Lot 

Width 
Number of units 

Percentage of 

development 

Typical lot area 

(minimum size) 

55-feet 119 39% 7,425 square feet 

60-feet 149 50% 8,100 square feet 

75-feet 33 11% 10,875 square feet  

Total 301            100%  

162



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 21, 2018 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 3 
 

unless the City Council finds that, based on substantial evidence, a proposed alternative development 

guideline is adequate to protect to the public health safety, and welfare. Any deviations must be consistent 

with the policies of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

1. Typical Lot Width Standard. The first deviation is to Land Development Code Section 

2.02.18.D.11, which requires a minimum lot size within a PUD to be 70-feet in width, and to have 

a minimum site area of 7,500 square feet. In addition to 75-foot wide lots, the developer is 

proposing 60-foot and 55-foot wide lots with minimum lots sizes of 8,100 square feet and 7,425 

square feet respectively.  

 

2.    Garage Standards. The second deviation requested is from Section 3.2.1 of the Development 

Design Guidelines which requires front-entry garages to be setback a minimum of thirty (30) feet 

from the front property line. The Master Plan provides a 25-foot setback for front entry garages. 

Based on the shape of the property and the lot yield that the applicant has indicated is necessary 

for financial feasibility, a 25-foot garage setback will potentially result in a larger back yard.  

 

3. Architectural Design.  The third deviation requested is from Section 3.2.1 of the Development 

Design Guidelines, an architectural appearance standard, which requires front entry garages to be 

flush with or behind the primary residential façade. The applicant is proposing protruding garages 

in addition to side-entry, flush, and recessed garages. The applicant contends that providing the 

protruding garage options in addition to side-entry, flush, and recessed garages will help to break 

up the monotony of each home being offset the same distance from the sidewalk.  

 

4. Architectural Design. The fourth deviation requested is from Section 3.2.1 of the Development 

Design Guidelines, which requires front entry garages to comprise no more than 50 percent of the 

length of a residential structure’s frontage. The applicant is requesting to permit all 60-foot wide 

lots with 50-foot wide homes to allow for the garage to cover a maximum of 60 percent of the 

length of the front primary façade only in the case a three (3) car garage is selected by the 

homebuyer. The Development Design Guidelines allow a three car front-entry garage to comprise 

more than 50 percent of the front façade length if one (1) habitable floor is located over the 

majority of the garage, or (2) an architectural feature such as dormers that give an appearance of 

an occupied floor above the garage are provided. The prospective homebuilder is currently 

finalizing the architectural package for the development, and is not certain whether the homes 

with three (3) car garages will have a habitable floor over the majority of the garage or an 

architectural feature that gives the appearance of habitable space such as a dormer will be 

provided.  

 

C. Justification for Deviations\Development Standard.  The following justifications are provided for the 

four deviations that are proposed. 

 

1. An improved recreation amenities package is proposed. The recreation package will consist of a 

cabana with restrooms, a swimming pool, a playground, and a mixed-use active field at a 

minimum. In addition the developer is dedicating a tract in Phase 1 adjacent to Marshall Lake as 

a Community Lake Park that will have a community dock, and a 1.03 acre open space tract across 

the street from this park. In the Phase 2 area, two tracts will be dedicated as a park/open space 

area, and a 15.12 acre Conservation area will also be dedicated. 

  

163



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 21, 2018 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 4 
 

 

2. Protection of Environmentally Sensitive Areas and Preservation of Open Space.  The PUD master 

plan protects wetlands within the northwest and northeast corners of the project boundaries, 

containing approximately 19 acres within Tracts “K” and “L” of Phase I.  Open space is preserved 

through approximately 15 acres within Tract “I” of Phase 2.   

 

3. Abutting Site Characteristics. Fifty-foot landscape buffer. An existing 50-foot landscape buffer 

occurs along the western and northern project line within the Breckenridge plat. This buffer is 

noted as a tract on the Breckenridge plat. The Lake Marshall development will not be visible from 

the homes within Breckenridge and separation between the larger lots in Breckenridge and the 

smaller lots within Lake Marshall PUD will be provided.  S.R. 451 (tollway) abuts a significant 

portion of the eastern project line, making the area less attractive for large lot residential 

development. 

 

4. The Master Plan proposes a diversity of lot sizes-- (55-feet, 60-feet, and 75-feet lot widths). 

 

5. Access to the site is limited because of lake and wetland systems to the north and an odd shape 

parcel to the south.  The southern end of the property is also blocked by a wetland system.  

Therefore, access to the property is severely limited, leaving Johns Road as the only reasonable 

access point without impacting environmentally sensitive areas. 

 

6. The Master Plan proposes a gated residential community with private roads and infrastructure.  

 

TRANSPORTATION: The traffic generated by this project will cause a reduced level of service at the 

intersection of Johns Road and Bradshaw Road and the intersection of Bradshaw Road and Ocoee Apopka 

Road. The intersection of Johns Road and Bradshaw Road will require the following roadway 

improvements to be constructed prior to the issuance of the 87th Certificate of Occupancy for Phase 1, 

Phase 2, or a combination of Phase 1 and Phase 2: 

 
1.  A 260- foot northbound left turn lane; 
 
2.  A 185-foot southbound right turn lane; and 
 
3.  A 150-foot eastbound turn lane. 

 

The intersection of Bradshaw Road and Ocoee Apopka Road is projected to experience significant delays 

at the stop sign with the addition project traffic and committed traffic on both roadways. While existing 

conditions do not warrant a signal, the intersection may meet warrants in the future. It is recommended the 

Developer be required to conduct a signal warrant analysis for the intersection of Bradshaw Road and Ocoee 

Apopka Road prior to the issuance of the 251st Certificate of Occupancy. If it is determined a signal is 

warranted, then a proportionate share value shall be coordinated between the City and the Developer to 

design and install a traffic signal at the intersection within a year of the issuance of the final Certificate of 

Occupancy. 

 

PUD RECOMMENDATIONS:  That the zoning classification of the following described property be 

designated as Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and 

with the following Master Plan provisions subject to the following zoning provisions: 
 

164



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 21, 2018 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 5 
 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be single-family residential uses. 

B. Terms of Expiration for this PUD shall be as follows: 

 

If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by the City 

within three years, and site development has not commenced within four years after approval of 

these Master Plan provisions, the approval of the Master Plan provisions will expire. At such time, 

the City Council may: 
 

1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Final Development Plan; 

 

2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of new 

Master Plan provisions and any conditions of approval; or 

 

3. Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

  
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN COMPLIANCE: The proposed use of the property is consistent with the 

Low Density Residential and Mixed-Use Future Land Use designations and is consistent with the Land 

Development Code.   

 

SCHOOL CAPACITY REPORT:  An application for School capacity determination and a mitigation 

agreement has been submitted to OCPS by the application.  A plat will not be recorded by the City until 

such time the School Board approves a school capacity mitigation agreement. 

 

ORANGE COUNTY NOTIFICATION: Pursuant to Section 7 of the Joint Planning Area agreement, 

notification to Orange County is not required for a rezoning application as the subject parcels are not 

adjacent to unincorporated Orange County.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING SCHEDULE: 

February 13, 2018 - Planning Commission (5:30 pm) 

March 21, 2018 - City Council (7:00 pm) - 1st Reading 

April 4, 2018 – City Council (1:30 pm) - 2nd Reading 

 

DULY ADVERTISED: 

February 2, 2018 – Public Notice; Letter, Poster 

February 23, 2018 – Public Notice (Apopka Chief) 

March 23, 2018 – Public Notice (Apopka Chief) 

  

165



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 21, 2018 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 6 
 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

 

The Development Review Committee finds the proposed rezoning to Planned Unit Development (PUD), 

PUD Master Plan, and the Preliminary Development Plan consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and 

Land Development Code and recommends approval of the Lake Marshall Subdivision Planned Unit 

Development Master Plan and Preliminary Development Plan. 

 

The Planning Commission, at its meeting held on February 13, 2018, found the proposed rezoning 

consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development Code; and recommended approval (4-2) 

of the rezoning of the subject parcels from Planned Unit Development (PUD), Mixed-EC (Mixed 

Employment Center) and I-1 (Restricted Industrial) to Planned Unit Development/Residential (PUD); and 

approval of the PUD Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan based on the findings and facts presented 

in the staff report and exhibits. 

 

Recommended Motion: Accept the First Reading of Ordinance 2637 and Hold it Over for Second Reading 

and Adoption on April 4, 2018; and approval of the PUD Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan based 

on the findings and facts presented in the staff report and exhibits. 

 

Note: This item is considered quasi-judicial.  The staff report and its findings are to be incorporated 

into and made a part of the minutes of this meeting. 

166



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 21, 2018 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 7 
 

ZONING REPORT 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO ADJACENT PROPERTIES: 

 

Direction Future Land Use Zoning Present Use 

North (City) Low Density Residential (0-5 du/ac) R-3 Marshall Lake, Lake Doe 

Estates subdivision  

East (City) Industrial, None assigned  (SR 451 right-of-way)  I-1, no zoning 

assigned  

Existing agricultural use 

(John’s Nursery), SR 451 

right-of-way  

South (City) Low Density Residential (0-5 du/ac), 

Commercial (max 0.25 FAR) 

R-1A, C-1 Vacant property, SR 451 

retention pond 

West (City) Low Density Residential (0-5 du/ac) R-1A, R-2, 

PUD  

Breckenridge residential 

subdivision buffer tract,  

vacant property   

 
LAND USE &  
TRAFFIC COMPATIBILITY: The property is accessed via Johns Road, which connects to South 

Bradshaw Road. Internal streets are private and are proposed to be 
owned and maintained by a yet to be established homeowners 
association. Future land use designations and zoning categories 
assigned to properties to the north, south, east, and west are 
predominantly residential.   

 
COMPREHENSIVE 
PLAN COMPLIANCE:  The proposed PUD zoning is compatible with policies set forth in the 

Comprehensive Plan.  
 
ALLOWABLE 
USES:  Single-family residential uses as set forth within the Planned Unit 

Development Master Plan. 
  

167



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 21, 2018 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 8 
 

 
Project: LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION, PHASES 1 & 2 

Owned by:  City of Apopka; James D. & Deborah Lyda; and Citizens Bank of Florida 

Located: North and south of Johns Road; west of SR 451 

Parcel ID#s: 08-21-28-0000-00-005; 08-21-28-0000-00-043; 17-21-28-0000-00-014 

 

VICINITY MAP 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 

  

168



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 21, 2018 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 9 
 

 

 

ADJACENT ZONING 
 

 

  

169



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 21, 2018 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 10 
 

 

ADJACENT USES 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 170



CITY COUNCIL – MARCH 21, 2018 

LAKE MARSHALL SUBDIVISION – CHANGE OF ZONING 
PAGE 11 
 

 

EXISTING USES 

 

 

 
 

 

171



ORDINANCE 2637 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF APOPKA, FLORIDA, CHANGING THE 

ZONING FROM PUD (PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT), MIXED-EC 

(MIXED EMPLOYMENT CENTER), AND I-1 (RESTRICTED INDUSTRIAL) 

TO PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT/RESIDENTIAL (PUD) FOR 

CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED SOUTH OF 

MARSHALL LAKE AND WEST OF SR 451, COMPRISING 154.18 ACRES 

MORE OR LESS, AND OWNED BY THE CITY OF APOPKA, JAMES D. & 

DEBORAH M. LYDA, AND CITIZENS BANK OF FLORIDA; PROVIDING 

FOR DIRECTIONS TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR, 

SEVERABILITY,CONFLICTS,AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
 WHEREAS, to manage the growth, the City of Apopka, Florida, finds it in the best interest 
of the public health, safety and welfare of its citizens to establish zoning classifications within the 
City; and 
 
 WHEREAS,  The City of Apopka, James D. & Deborah M. Lyda, and Citizens Bank of 
Florida has requested a change in zoning on said property as identified in Section I of this ordinance; 
and  
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD) zoning has been found to be 
consistent with the City of Apopka Comprehensive Plan, and the City of Apopka Land Development 
Code. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the City Council of the City of Apopka, 
Florida, as follows: 
 
 Section I.  That the zoning classification of the following described property be designated as 
Planned Unit Development (PUD), as defined in the Apopka Land Development Code, and with the 
following Master Site Plan provisions subject to the following zoning provisions: 
 

A. The uses permitted within the PUD district shall be:  single family homes and associated 
accessory uses or structures consistent with land use and development standards 
established for the PUD district except where otherwise addressed in this ordinance and 
the Master Site Plan. 

 
B.   Development of the property shall occur consistent with the Master Site Plan set forth in 

Exhibit “A”.  If a development standard or zoning regulation is not addressed within 
Exhibit “A”, development shall comply with the PUD zoning standards set forth in the 
Land Development Code.  Where any development standard conflicts between the Lake 
Marshall Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan and the Land Development Code, 
the Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan shall prevail.  Any proposed revision to 
the Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan shall be evaluated and processed pursuant 
to Section 2.02.18.N. (Master Plan revision), LDC. 

 
C.   If a Final Development Plan associated with the PUD district has not been approved by 

the City within three years after approval of these Master Plan provisions, the approval of 
the Master Plan\Preliminary Development Plan provisions will expire.   At such time, the 
City Council may: 

 
1. Permit a single six-month extension for submittal of the required Final Development 

Plan; 

172



ORDINANCE NO. 2637 

PAGE 2 

 

 
 

 

2. Allow the PUD zoning designation to remain on the property pending resubmittal of 
new Master Site Plan provisions and any conditions of approval; or 

 
3.  Rezone the property to a more appropriate zoning classification. 

 
D.   The intersection of Johns Road and Bradshaw Road will be significantly impacted by the 

addition of traffic generated by this project. Design plans for the following improvements 
will be included in the Final Development Plan for Phase 2 of the development.  The 
roadway improvements shall be constructed by the developer prior to the issuance of the 
87th Certificate of Occupancy for Phase 1, Phase 2, or a combination of Phase 1 and Phase 
2, according to City standards: 

 
1.  A 260-foot northbound left turn lane; 
 
2.  A 185-foot southbound right turn lane; and 
 
3.  A 150-foot eastbound turn lane. 

 
E. The intersection of Bradshaw Road and Ocoee Apopka Road will be significantly 

impacted by the addition of traffic generated by this project. Prior to the issuance of the 
251st Certificate of Occupancy, the developer will conduct a signal warrant analysis for 
the intersection of Bradshaw Road and Ocoee Apopka Road. Since Ocoee-Apopka Road 
is an Orange County controlled road and Bradshaw Road is a City controlled road, the 
City, in cooperation with the County, will determine if a signal is warranted. If a signal is 
warranted, then a proportionate share value shall be coordinated between the City and the 
Developer to design and install a traffic signal at the intersection within a year of the 
issuance of the final Certificate of Occupancy. 

 
Section II.  That the zoning classification of the following described property, being situated 

in the City of Apopka, Florida, is hereby Planned Unit Development (PUD/R-1A) as defined in the 
Apopka Land Development Code. 
 

Legal Description: Attachment “A” 
 

 Section III.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the 
City of Apopka, Florida. 
 
 Section IV.  That the Community Development Director, or the Director’s designee, is hereby 
authorized to amend, alter, and implement the official zoning maps of the City of Apopka, Florida, to 
include said designation. 
 
 Section V. That if any section or portion of a section or subsection of this Ordinance proves 
to be invalid, unlawful, or unconstitutional, it shall not be held to invalidate or impair the validity, 
force or effect of any other section or portion of section or subsection or part of this ordinance. 
 
 Section VI.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed.  
 
 
 

173



ORDINANCE NO. 2637 

PAGE 3 

 

 Section VII.  That this Ordinance shall take effect upon the date of adoption. 
 
 

                     
 
 

       _____________________________________ 
       Joseph E. Kilsheimer, Mayor                                  
 
ATTEST:  
 
 
__________________________________ 
Linda Goff, City Clerk 
 
DULY ADVERTISED: February 2, 2018     
    February 23, 2018 
    March 23, 2018 

  

 
READ FIRST TIME:  March 21, 2018 
 
READ SECOND TIME 
AND ADOPTED:     April 4, 2018 

174



ORDINANCE NO. 2637 

PAGE 4 

 

ATTACHMENT “A” 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Parcel ID Nos.: 28-21-08-0000-00-005; 28-21-08-0000-00-043; 28-21-17-0000-00-014 
Combined Acreage: 154.18 +/- Acres 

 
OCPA PARCEL ID 28-21-08-0000-00-005: 
 
FIRST AMERICAN TITLE FILE NUMBER:  2037-3759052 - THE LAND 
REFERRED TO HEREIN BELOW IS SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF ORANGE, 
STATE OF FLORIDA, AND IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
PARCEL 1:  
 
NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, 
RANGE 28 EAST, LESS:  BEGIN AT SOUTHWEST CORNER OF NORTHEAST 
1/4 OF SOUTHWEST 1/4, SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, 
RUN NORTH 343 FEET, EAST 400 FEET, SOUTH 343 FEET, WEST 400 FEET 
TO POINT OF BEGINNING, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA.  
 
PARCEL 2:  
 
WEST 1/2 OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, 
TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA.  
 
AND  
 
BEGIN AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF THE EAST HALF OF THE 
SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 21 
SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, RUN NORTH 89°33'48" EAST 950 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTH 00°30'54" WEST 35 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89°33'48" WEST 950 FEET; 
THENCE NORTH 00°30'54" EAST 35 FEET TO POINT OF BEGINNING, 
ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA.   
 
AND  
 
THE EAST HALF OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4, ALSO 
THAT PORTION OF THE SOUTH 12 ACRES OF THE WEST HALF OF THE 
NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 SOUTH OF CENTER LINE OF 
LAKE, LESS THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PARCEL: BEGIN AT THE 
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE WEST HALF OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE 
SOUTHEAST 1/4, SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, RUN 
SOUTH 89°33'48" WEST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID WEST HALF 
328.92 FEET; THENCE NORTH 11°16'48" EAST 580 FEET TO THE CENTRAL 
LINE OF LAKE; THENCE SOUTH 44°53'28" EAST ALONG CENTRAL LINE OF 
LAKE, 306.45 FEET TO THE EAST LINE OF SAID WEST HALF; THENCE 
SOUTH ALONG EAST LINE OF SAID WEST HALF 350 FEET TO POINT OF 
BEGINNING, SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE 
COUNTY, FLORIDA, AND COMMENCE EAST 1/4 CORNER OF SECTION 8, 
TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, RUN THENCE SOUTH 89°30'41" 
WEST 1070.14 FEET, SOUTH 00°18'05" WEST 388.7 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING; RUN THENCE SOUTH 00°18'05" WEST 25 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTH 89°30'41" WEST 247.92 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 00°21'52" WEST 115.13 

175



ORDINANCE NO. 2637 

PAGE 5 

 

FEET; THENCE NORTH 89°30'41" EAST 307.92 FEET; THENCE NORTH 
00°18'05" EAST 140.13 FEET; THENCE WEST TO POINT OF BEGINNING, LESS 
SOUTH 383.7 FEET OF THE NORTH 413.7 FEET OF THE EAST 100 FEET OF 
THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 
21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. LESS ANY 
PORTION OF THE ABOVE DESCRIPTION LYING WITHIN THE BOUNDARY 
OF LAKE MARSHALL DRIVE AS DESCRIBED IN QUIT CLAIM DEED 
RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 3726, PAGE 2538, OF THE PUBLIC 
RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA.  
 
ALSO LESS AND EXCEPT FROM THE ABOVE DESCRIPTIONS, ANY 
PORTION LYING WITHIN THE PROPERTY DESCRIBED IN STIPULATED 
ORDER OF TAKING RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 5461, PAGE 
2470, OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA.  
 
PARCEL 3 
 
THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 
AND THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 
1/4 OF SECTION 8, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE 
COUNTY, FLORIDA. 
 
OCPA PARCEL ID 28-21-08-0000-00-043 
 
FIRST AMERICAN FILE NUMBER: 2037-3736852 - THE LAND REFERRED TO 
HEREIN BELOW IS SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF ORANGE, STATE OF 
FLORIDA, AND IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
THE EAST 1/2 OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4, SECTION 
8, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
LYING SOUTH OF MASEK ROAD NOW KNOWN AS JOHNS ROAD. 
 
AND  
 
THE WEST 1/2 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4, SECTION 
8, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
LYING SOUTH OF MASEK ROAD NOW KNOWN AS JOHNS ROAD. 
 
OCPA PARCEL ID 28-21-17-0000-00-014 
 
FIRST AMERICAN FILE NUMBER: 2037-3736840 - THE LAND REFERRED TO 
HEREIN BELOW IS SITUATED IN THE COUNTY OF ORANGE, STATE OF 
FLORIDA, AND IS DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 

 
 
THE SOUTH HALF (S ½) OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW ¼) OF THE 
NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE ¼) OF NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE ¼) OF 
SECTION SEVENTEEN (17) TOWNSHIP TWENTY-ONE SOUTH OF RANGE 
TWENTY-EIGHT EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA.  
 
AND  
 
 

176



ORDINANCE NO. 2637 

PAGE 6 

 

THE NORTH HALF (N ½) OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER (NW ¼) OF 
NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE ¼) OF NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE ¼) OF 
SECTION SEVENTEEN (17) TOWNSHIP TWENTY-ONE SOUTH OF RANGE 
TWENTY EIGHT EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA  
 
AND  
 
THAT PART OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (SE ¼) OF NORTHEAST 
QUARTER (NE ¼) OF SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, 
ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, LYING WEST OF STATE ROAD 429 AND LESS 
PORTION THEREOF DESCRIBED IN ORDER OF TAKING RECORDED IN 
OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 5487, PAGE 1547, PUBLIC RECORDS OF 
ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 
 
AND  
 
THAT PART OF THE EAST HALF (E ½) OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE 
¼) OF NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE ¼), SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, 
RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA, LYING WEST OF STATE 
ROAD 429 RIGHT OF WAY, AND LESS PORTION DESCRIBED IN ORDER OF 
TAKING RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 5487, PAGE 1547, 
PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA. 
 
AND  
 
THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER (SW ¼) OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE 
¼), OF THE NORTHEAST QUARTER (NE ¼), OF SECTION 17, TOWNSHIP 21 
SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA; LESS PORTION 
DESCRIBED IN ORDER OF TAKING RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS 
BOOK 5487, PAGE 1547, PUBLIC RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, 
FLORIDA.  
 
AND  
 
ALL THAT PORTION OF THE EAST HALF ½ (E½) OF THE SOUTHEAST 
QUARTER (SE ¼) OF THE SOUTHEAST QUARTER (SE¼) OF SECTION 8, 
TOWNSHIP 21 SOUTH, RANGE 28 EAST, LYING SOUTH OF THE COUNTY 
CLAY ROAD AS NOW EXISTING, IN ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA; AND 
LYING WEST OF LANDS DESCRIBED IN ORDER OF TAKING RECORDED IN 
OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 5487, PAGE 1547 AND LESS RIGHT OF WAY 
DESCRIBED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 1981, PAGE 295, PUBLIC 
RECORDS OF ORANGE COUNTY, FLORIDA.  

177



178



179



1 
 

LAKE MARSHALL PHASE 1 MASTER PLAN DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 
 
 
A.  Design Standards 
 
1. LOT CRITERIA: 
 

Description Single-Family Detached 
60’ Lot 

Single-Family Detached 
75’ Lot 

Lot Setbacks (1) 
Front Porch(2) 15’ 15’ 

Front 25’ 25’ 
Rear 20’ 20’ 
Side 5’ 7.5’ 

Side Corner 15’ N/A 
Garage 25’ (6) 25’ (6) 

Accessory Structure Rear 5’ 5’ 
Lot Dimensions 

Min. Average Lot Area 8,100 SF(5) 10,875 SF 
Min. Lot Width 60’ (3) 75’ (4) 
Min. Lot Depth 135’(5) 145’ 

Max. Lot Coverage 75% 75% 
Max. Building Height 35’/2 Stories 35’/2 Stories 

Min. Living Area 1,800 SF 1,800 SF 
(1) See sheet titled “Curve and Lot Data Table” for depiction of conceptual typical site plans. 
(2) Front porch setback as allowed per City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines 3.2.1. 
(3) Minimum lot width may be reduced to 40’ around curves so long as lot width at the building 

line is 60’ minimum. 
(4) Minimum lot width may be reduced to 40’ around curves so long as lot width at the building 

line is 75’ minimum. 
(5) Lots 56, 57, and 65 have lot areas of 7,326 SF, 8,192 SF, and 7,838 SF, respectively, and 

minimum lot depths of 114’, 129’, and 122’, respectively.  See sheet titled “Curve and Lot 
Data Table” of the Lake Marshall Subdivision Phase 1 PUD Master Plan/Preliminary 
Development Plan for lot sizing and setback details for these lots. 

(6) A deviation from the City of Apopka’s requirement of a 30’ garage setback is hereby 
requested. 

 
B.  Architectural, Buildings, and Accessory Structures 
1. Architectural design shall meet the intent of City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines or 

unless otherwise stated. 
2. All lots shall have detached single family homes. 
3. Each individual single-family home shall have a minimum of two (2) bedrooms. 
4. All lots shall have attached minimum two (2) car garages. 
5. A deviation from the City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines is hereby requested to allow 

for side-entry, flush, recessed, and protruding garage styles throughout the Lake Marshall 
Subdivision. 

180



2 
 

6. Mail delivery for all lots within both phases of the Lake Marshall Subdivision shall occur at mail 
kiosks with cluster mailbox units.  Approval from the Postmaster of the mail kiosks and their location 
shall be submitted prior to approval of the Final Development Plan. 

7. AC condenser units & similar equipment placed in the side yard area shall be screened with 
landscaping or opaque fencing.  

8. Storage sheds or similar storage facilities shall not be allowed. 
9. Swimming pools shall be allowed on all lots.  

a) Swimming Pools must be in-ground type. Above Ground Pools are prohibited. 
b) Swimming pools and decks are prohibited from projecting beyond the side wall facade. 

10. Screen enclosures over swimming pools and their respective deck area with non-metal or non-vinyl 
roofs shall be allowed.  

a) Screening shall be dark mesh. Opaque, semi-opaque or clear panels on the walls or roofs are 
prohibited. 

11. Screen enclosures with metal, vinyl, or screen mesh roofs over non-swimming pool decks are 
prohibited. 

12. Architectural Design Standards: 
a) Architectural styles shall be determined prior to Final Development Plan approval, and these 

shall meet the intent of to the City of Apopka’s Development Design Guidelines except as noted 
on these Development Standards.  Modification or replacement of the exterior elevations can be 
approved by the Community Development Director if such changes represent equivalent 
architectural value.  Substantial deviations from architectural rendering must be approved by 
City Council. 

b) A deviation from the City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines is hereby requested for all 
60’ lots with 50’ wide homes to allow for the garage to cover a maximum of 60% of the length 
of the front primary façade only in the case a three (3) car garage is selected by the homebuyer. 

c) Front facade materials such as cultured stone veneer, stucco, & fiber cement siding shall be 
utilized to be consistent with the applicable Architectural Style. 

d) Minimum roof pitch over the main house and garage shall be 5/12. Roof pitch over porches shall 
be a minimum of 4/12. 

e) 30-year asphalt shingle shall be installed on all roofs. 3-tab shingles are prohibited. Single 
shingle color shall be used for uniformity throughout the community. 

f) Aluminum fascia and soffit shall be standard for all houses. Single Fascia and soffit color shall 
be used for uniformity throughout the community. 

g) Trim around windows and doors shall be painted a different color from the body of the house.  
Doors may be painted either the same as the trim or separate accent color. 

h) Pavers shall be installed in front yard driveways and lead walks. 
13. Front Building Entrance Elevation Design Standards: 

a) Front porches & porticos at grade level. 
b) Identical model plan type shall not be constructed on neighboring lots who share a side yard 

property boundary line without a different elevation style type. 
c) Identical exterior paint schemes shall not be applied on neighboring lots who share a side yard 

property boundary line. 
d) Modification or replacement of the exterior elevations can be approved by the Community 

Development Director if such changes represent equivalent architectural value. Substantial 
deviations from architectural rendering must be approved by City Council. 

14. Rear Elevation Design Standards: 
a) Large expanses of solid wall shall be avoided thru use of windows, wall features, or wall / roof 

jogs. 
b) Window grid patterns and window banding & trim shall match front elevation windows. 

181



3 
 

c) Identical exterior paint schemes shall not be applied on neighboring lots who share a side yard 
property boundary line  

d) Modification or replacement of the exterior elevation can be approved by the Community 
Development Director if such changes represent equivalent architectural value. Substantial 
deviations from architectural rendering must be approved by City Council. 

15. Mail Kiosk Elevation Design Standards: 
a) Elevation shall be compatible with the architectural elevation styles of the homes & mail kiosks 

within the community. 
16. Individual Lot Front & Rear Yard Fencing Standards: 

a) Maximum height of a fence shall be 6'-0" above final grade. When abutting a common area wall, 
the fence height shall taper to the height of the wall across a horizontal distance no less than 8’-
0”. 

b) Rear yard fences shall not project more than five feet (5') beyond rear side wall building corner. 
 
 
C.   Utilities and Infrastructure 
 
1. Water service shall be provided by the City of Apopka.  The water system shall be designed to City 

standards. 
2. Reclaim water service shall be provided by the City of Apopka.  The reclaim water system shall be 

designed to City standards. 
3. Stormwater management system shall be designed to comply with the design standards of this 

Master Plan and the St. Johns River Water Management District. 
4. A final drainage report and soils report will be submitted with the Final Development Plan. 
5. Sanitary service shall be provided by the City of Apopka. The sanitary system shall be designed to 

City of Apopka standards.  
6.  Utility easements shall be dedicated to the City of Apopka. 
7. Drainage easements to be dedicated to the Home Owners’ Association unless otherwise required by 

the City of Apopka. 
8. All stormwater and utility pipes may be moved to save existing trees in the right-of-way.  Any 

change in the location of these pipes will be shown on the Final Development Plan. 
9. On-site streets are to be constructed per City of Apopka standards. 
10. Stabilized access roadways and fire hydrants must be in place before building construction may 

begin. 
11. Solid waste collection and public safety (police and fire) provided by the City of Apopka. 
12. The internal street right-of-way is to be private.  
13. Five-foot (5’) wide sidewalks are to be constructed adjacent to internal roads throughout the entire 

project in compliance with the City of Apopka Land Development Code.  Sidewalk alignment may 
be adjusted at final development plan to preserve existing trees. 

14. A five-foot (5’) wide sidewalk shall be constructed within the southern side of the Johns Road right-
of-way from the main entrance proposed within Parcel ID 28-21-08-0000-00-005 east until the 
western parcel boundary of Parcel ID 28-21-08-0000-00-043.  At this point, a crosswalk will be 
installed across the Johns Road paved roadway to the northern side of the right-of-way, from where 
the proposed sidewalk will run east and connect to the existing sidewalk.  

15. Right-of-way dedication along Johns Road shall be as depicted on sheet C4.0 or the Lake Marshall 
Subdivision Phase 1 Planned Unit Development Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan. 

16. Garages shall be accessed from the adjacent public right-of-way at the front of the lot for all lots. 
17. Power service within the development shall be underground. No overhead service will be allowed. 

182



4 
 

18. Vehicular, Pedestrian and Accent lighting shall substantially conform the Section 3.10 – Lighting 
of the City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines. 

19. Based upon the development’s daily trip generation of 1,779 vehicles, the provision of one 
northbound deceleration lane at the intersection of Johns Road and Bradshaw Road is warranted 
when the development reaches 50 percent (50%) of its Phase 1 development program, or prior to 
the completion of the 87th residential unit in the entire Lake Marshall Subdivision, whichever 
comes first. 

20. A twenty-four-foot (24’), gated emergency access road shall be constructed between lots 135 and 
136, connecting the Lake Marshall Subdivision Street C right-of-way to the Breckenridge 
Subdivision Cavan Drive right-of-way to provide an emergency-only route for both subdivisions.  
This access road shall be constructed within a 40-foot emergency access easement, pedestrian 
ingress/egress, and utility easement.   

21. The potable and reclaimed water mains connecting Breckenridge to the City of Apopka utilities 
shall be rerouted through Lake Marshall Subdivision H.O.A.-owned tracts to remove them from 
the rear of lots 132 through 135.  Within the Breckenridge Subdivision, these mains will run north 
through the 40-foot emergency access easement, pedestrian ingress/egress, and utility easement 
mentioned above. 

 
 
D.  Recreation and Open Space 
 
1. Required project open space shall be a minimum of 30% of the developed site area in accordance 

with City of Apopka LDC Section 2.02.18(D)(19). 
2. Required project recreation shall be provided at a rate of 3.6 acres per 1,000 population with 2.6 

population per dwelling unit. 
3. Tract “E” shall be an approximate 1.56-acre Park.  A specific park site plan and amenities/equipment 

shall be provided with the Final Development Plan.  Park amenities shall include a cabana with 
restrooms, a swimming pool, a playground, and a mixed-use active field at a minimum.  The 
Community Building shall be a minimum of 900 SF containing, at a minimum, restroom facilities 
for the building and pool. The swimming pool and deck area shall be a minimum of 3,000 SF and 
water area a minimum of 2,000 SF.  Documentation/calculations that the proposed pool size 
complies with state health standards will be provided at the Final Development Plan. 

4.   Tract “F” shall be an approximate 1.58-acre Community Lake Park.  A specific park site plan and 
amenities/equipment shall be provided with the Final Development Plan.  Community lake park 
amenities shall include at a minimum one community ramp, one community dock, and picnic tables. 

5. Tract G and H will incorporate pedestrian circulation, benches, and open play areas.  Specific park 
site plans and amenities/equipment shall be provided with the Final Development Plan.  

6. All recreation and open space areas within the limits of Phase 1 will be accessible to all homeowners 
of Phase 2 of the Lake Marshall Subdivision. 

 
E.  Buffers and Landscaping 
 
1. A twenty-foot (20’) buffer for entry wall and landscaping will be provided along each side of the 

proposed main entrance on Johns Road.  These tracts shall be dedicated to and maintained by the 
H.O.A.  The design of these buffer tracts shall generally follow the landscape design appearing on 
sheets LS-04 and LS-08 of the Master Plan/Preliminary Development Plan.   A six foot (6’) high 
wall or fence is provided in these tracts to provide buffering from the adjacent roadway.  

2.  A five-foot (5’) wide buffer tract for landscaping will be provided along the rear of lots 1-24 to 
provide buffering from industrial-zoned properties.  This tract shall be dedicated to and maintained 

183



5 
 

by the H.O.A.  The design of this buffer shall generally follow the landscape design appearing on 
sheets LS-01, LS-02, LS-04, LS-05, LS-06, and LS-08 of the Master Plan/Preliminary Development 
Plan.  

3. A ten-foot (10’) wide buffer tract for landscaping will be provided along each side of the proposed 
emergency access tract for Lake Marshall Subdivision and Breckenridge Subdivision.  These tracts 
shall be dedicated to and maintained by the H.O.A.  The design of these buffer tracts shall generally 
follow the landscape design appearing on sheet LS-06 of the Master Plan/Preliminary Development 
Plan. 

4.  Entrance feature and community sign details will be provided with the Final Development Plan.   
5. Final landscape plans for the buffer areas along the proposed main entrance at Johns Road will be 

provided with the Final Development Plan. 
6. Tree Planting Conditions.  Minimum of three new trees shall be planted per 60’ and 75’ residential 

lot.  The new trees shall be a minimum of three inches (3”) DBH at the time of planting and shall 
count toward the overall number of required tree replacement inches, if any. 

7.  Tree Protection Plan - The Final Development Plan shall include tree protection techniques to 
prevent harm to any trees designate to be preserved or encroachment into protected natural areas, 
including but not limited to tree barricades, silt fencing or other similar techniques accepted by the 
City Engineer.    

 
 
F.  Maintenance and Plat  
 
1.   The Lake Marshall Home Owners’ Association will maintain common areas, fences/walls, and 

landscaping within the front and corner yards of all lots.  The HOA shall also be responsible for 
maintenance of streets, street lighting, and stormwater collection systems within the right-of-way 
and drainage easements within the Lake Marshall Subdivision. 

2. The Final Development Plan shall include the plat document, and the plat shall be in final form. 
 
 
G.  Wetlands and Environmental 
 
1. There are three wetland areas within the site.  These are located in the northwest, north, and northeast 

portions of the property.   
2. According to the FEMA Flood Insurance Rate Map for Orange County, FL, Panel No. 12095-C-

0120-F, dated September 25, 2009, the majority of the proposed development is located within Zone 
X (areas determined to outside the 500-year floodplain) and limited northern portions of Parcel ID 
28-21-08-0000-00-005 fall within FEMA flood zone AE.  The areas within these portions that will 
be developed will be removed from the floodplain.  

3. An erosion control plan will be submitted with the Final Development Plan.  
4. Tree removal, tree replacement, and landscaping shall comply with Water Wise Ordinance 2069 

and shall be consistent with Article V of the City of Apopka Land Development Code.   
5.  Individual lot arbor/clearing permit is required prior to clearing or grading of any lot or issuance of 

building permit. Placement of the house shall preserve existing trees to the greatest extent practical.  
Plot plan for each lot shall illustrate tree locations as presented within the PUD Master 
Plan\Preliminary Development Plan.  

 
 
H.  Development Condition Continuity 
  

184



6 
 

The PUD Development Standards shall be printed within the PUD Master Plan and the Final 
Development Plan. 
 
 

I.  Signage 
 

Signage shall comply with Article 8 of the City of Apopka Land Development Code and with the 
City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines. 

 
 
J.  Lighting    
 

Lighting shall comply with the City of Apopka’s City Ordinance No. 2069 and Section 3.10 of the 
City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines.  Street and parking area or pedestrian path light 
poles shall be decorative type.  Details will be provided with the Final Development Plan. 

 
 
L.  Miscellaneous    
 
1. Any existing septic tanks or wells shall be properly abandoned prior to earthwork or construction. 

Permits shall be applied for and issued by the appropriate agencies. 
2. All acreages are subject to change with final engineering and final plat review and approval. 

185



186



187



188



189



190



191



1 
 

LAKE MARSHALL PHASE 2 MASTER PLAN DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS 
 
 
A.  Design Standards 
 
1. LOT CRITERIA: 
 

Description Single-Family Detached 
60’ Lot 

Single-Family Detached 
55’ Lot 

Lot Setbacks (1) 
Front Porch(2) 15’ 15’ 

Front 25’ 25’ 
Rear 20’ 20’ 
Side 5’ 7.5’ 

Side Corner 15’ N/A 
Garage 25’ (5) 25’ (5) 

Accessory Structure Rear 5’ 5’ 
Lot Dimensions 

Min. Average Lot Area 8,100 SF 7,425 SF 
Min. Lot Width 60’ (3) 55’ (4) 
Min. Lot Depth 135’ 135’ 

Max. Lot Coverage 75% 75% 
Max. Building Height 35’/2 Stories 35’/2 Stories 

Min. Living Area 1,600 SF 1,600 SF 
(1) See Sheet C3.6 for depiction of conceptual typical site plans. 
(2) Front porch setback as allowed per City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines 3.2.1. 
(3) Minimum lot width may be reduced to 40’ around curves so long as lot width at the building 

line is 60’ minimum. 
(4) Minimum lot width may be reduced to 35’ around curves so long as lot width at the building 

line is 55’ minimum. 
(5) A deviation from the City of Apopka’s requirement of a 30’ garage setback is hereby 

requested. 
 
B.  Architectural, Buildings, and Accessory Structures 
1. Architectural design shall meet the intent of City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines or 

unless otherwise stated. 
2. All lots shall have detached single family homes.  
3. Each individual single-family home shall have a minimum of two (2) bedrooms. 
4. All lots shall have attached minimum two (2) car garages. 
5. A deviation from the City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines is hereby requested to allow for 

side-entry, flush, recessed, and protruding garage styles throughout the Lake Marshall Subdivision. 
6. Mail delivery for all lots within both phases of the Lake Marshall Subdivision shall occur at mail 

kiosk with cluster mailbox units.  Approval from the Postmaster of the mail kiosks and their location 
shall be submitted prior to approval of the Final Development Plan. 

7. AC condenser units & similar equipment placed in the side yard area shall be screened with 
landscaping or opaque fencing.  

8. Storage sheds or similar storage facilities shall not be allowed. 
9. Swimming pools shall be allowed on all lots.  

192



2 
 

a) Swimming Pools must be in-ground type. Above Ground Pools are prohibited. 
b) Swimming pools and decks are prohibited from projecting beyond the side wall facade. 

10. Screen enclosures over swimming pools and their respective deck area with non-metal or non-vinyl 
roofs shall be allowed.  

a) Screening shall be dark mesh. Opaque, semi-opaque or clear panels on the walls or roofs are 
prohibited. 

11. Screen enclosures with metal, vinyl, or screen mesh roofs over non-swimming pool decks are 
prohibited. 

12. Architectural Design Standards: 
a) Architectural styles shall be determined prior to Final Development Plan approval, and these 

shall meet the intent of to the City of Apopka’s Development Design Guidelines except as noted 
on these Development Standards.  Modification or replacement of the exterior elevations can be 
approved by the Community Development Director if such changes represent equivalent 
architectural value.  Substantial deviations from architectural rendering must be approved by 
City Council. 

b) A deviation from the City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines is hereby requested for all 
60’ lots with 50’ wide homes to allow for the garage to cover a maximum of 60% of the length 
of the front primary façade only in the case a three (3) car garage is selected by the homebuyer. 

c) Front facade materials such as cultured stone veneer, stucco, & fiber cement siding shall be 
utilized to be consistent with the applicable Architectural Style. 

d) Minimum roof pitch over the main house and garage shall be 5/12. Roof pitch over porches shall 
be a minimum of 4/12. 

e) 30-year asphalt shingle shall be installed on all roofs. 3-tab shingles are prohibited. Single 
shingle color shall be used for uniformity throughout the community. 

f) Aluminum fascia and soffit shall be standard for all houses. Single Fascia and soffit color shall 
be used for uniformity throughout the community. 

g) Trim around windows and doors shall be painted a different color from the body of the house.  
Doors may be painted either the same as the trim or separate accent color. 

h) Pavers shall be installed in front yard driveways and lead walks. 
13. Front Building Entrance Elevation Design Standards: 

a) Front porches & porticos at grade level. 
b) Identical model plan type shall not be constructed on neighboring lots who share a side yard 

property boundary line without a different elevation style type. 
c) Identical exterior paint schemes shall not be applied on neighboring lots who share a side yard 

property boundary line. 
d) Modification or replacement of the exterior elevations can be approved by the Community 

Development Director if such changes represent equivalent architectural value. Substantial 
deviations from architectural rendering must be approved by City Council. 

14. Rear Elevation Design Standards: 
a) Large expanses of solid wall shall be avoided thru use of windows, wall features, or wall / roof 

jogs. 
b) Window grid patterns and window banding & trim shall match front elevation windows. 
c) Identical exterior paint schemes shall not be applied on neighboring lots who share a side yard 

property boundary line  
d) Modification or replacement of the exterior elevation can be approved by the Community 

Development Director if such changes represent equivalent architectural value. Substantial 
deviations from architectural rendering must be approved by City Council. 

15. Mail Kiosk Elevation Design Standards: 

193



3 
 

a) Elevation shall be compatible with the architectural elevation styles of the homes & mail kiosk 
within the community. 

16. Individual Lot Front & Rear Yard Fencing Standards: 
a) Maximum height of a fence shall be 6'-0" above final grade. When abutting a common area wall, 

the fence height shall taper to the height of the wall across a horizontal distance no less than 8’-
0”. 

b) Rear yard fences shall not project more than five feet (5') beyond rear side wall building corner. 
 
C.   Utilities and Infrastructure 
 
1. Water service shall be provided by the City of Apopka.  The water system shall be designed to City 

standards. 
2. Reclaim water service shall be provided by the City of Apopka.  The reclaim water system shall be 

designed to City standards. 
3. Stormwater management system shall be designed to comply with the design standards of this 

Master Plan and the St. Johns River Water Management District. 
4. A final drainage report and soils report will be submitted with the Final Development Plan. 
5. Sanitary service shall be provided by the City of Apopka. The sanitary system shall be designed to 

City of Apopka standards.  
6.  Utility easements shall be dedicated to the City of Apopka. 
7. Drainage easements to be dedicated to the Home Owners’ Association unless otherwise required by 

the City of Apopka. 
8. All stormwater and utility pipes may be moved to save existing trees in the right-of-way.  Any 

change in the location of these pipes will be shown on the Final Development Plan. 
9. On-site streets are to be constructed per City of Apopka standards. 
10. Stabilized access roadways and fire hydrants must be in place before building construction may 

begin. 
11. Solid waste collection and public safety (police and fire) provided by the City of Apopka. 
12. The internal street right-of-way is to be private.  
13. Five-foot (5’) wide sidewalks are to be constructed adjacent to internal roads throughout the entire 

project in compliance with the City of Apopka Land Development Code.  Sidewalk alignment may 
be adjusted at final development plan to preserve existing trees. 

14. Garages shall be accessed from the adjacent public right-of-way at the front of the lot for all lots. 
15. Power service within the development shall be underground. No overhead service will be allowed. 
16. Vehicular, Pedestrian and Accent lighting shall substantially conform the Section 3.10 – Lighting 

of the City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines. 
17. Based upon the Lake Marshall Subdivision Phase 1 and Phase 2 total daily trip generation of 2,896 

vehicles, the provision of one southbound deceleration lane on Bradshaw Road and one eastbound 
left turn lane on John’s Road at the intersection of John’s Road and Bradshaw Road to the east of 
the development are warranted.  These are in addition to the northbound deceleration lane on 
Bradshaw Road warranted prior to the completion of the 87th residential unit within the entire 
Lake Marshall Subdivision. 

 
D.  Recreation and Open Space 
 
1. Required project open space shall be a minimum of 30% of the developed site area in accordance 

with City of Apopka LDC Section 2.02.18(D)(19). 
2. Required project recreation shall be provided at a rate of 3.6 acres per 1,000 population with 2.6 

population per dwelling unit. 

194



4 
 

3. All parks and open space within the limits of Phase 1 of the Lake Marshall Subdivision shall be 
accessible to and account towards required recreation and open space areas for Phase 2 per the Lake 
Marshall Subdivision Phase 1 Planned Unit Development Master Plan/Preliminary Development 
Plan. 

4. Tracts E and F will incorporate pedestrian circulation, benches, and open play areas.  Specific park 
site plans and amenities/equipment shall be provided with the Final Development Plan.  

 
E.  Buffers and Landscaping 
 
1. A twenty-foot (20’) densely vegetated/landscaped tract will be provided along the rear of Lots 242-

257 and Tracts ‘E’ and ‘F’ to provide buffering from the adjacent SR 451 right-of-way.  This tract 
shall be dedicated to and maintained by the H.O.A.  The design of this buffer tract shall generally 
follow the landscape design appearing on sheets LS-02 and LS-04 of the Master Plan/Preliminary 
Development Plan.  

2.  A minimum ten-foot (10’) wide buffer tract for landscaping will be provided along the rear of lots 
175-199 to provide buffering from the Johns Road right-of-way.  This tract shall be dedicated to and 
maintained by the H.O.A.  The design of this buffer shall generally follow the landscape design 
appearing on sheets LS-01, LS-02, LS-04, and LS-05 of the Master Plan/Preliminary Development 
Plan.  

3.  Main access for Phase 2 will be through the Main Entrance located within the Phase 1 limits of the 
Lake Marshall Subdivision.   

4.  Entrance provided within the Phase 2 limits is to be a secondary, resident-only access, which will 
also be accessible to Phase 1 of the Lake Marshall Subdivision.  

5.  Entrance feature and community sign details will be provided with the Final Development Plan.   
6. Final landscape plans for the buffer areas along the proposed main entrance at John’s Road will be 

provided with the Final Development Plan. 
7. Tree Planting Conditions.  Minimum of three (3) new trees shall be planted per 55’ and 60’ 

residential lot.  The new trees shall be a minimum of three inches (3”) DBH at the time of planting 
and shall count toward the overall number of required tree replacement inches, if any. 

8.  Tree Protection Plan - The Final Development Plan shall include tree protection techniques to 
prevent harm to any trees designate to be preserved or encroachment into protected natural areas, 
including but not limited to tree barricades, silt fencing or other similar techniques accepted by the 
City Engineer.    

 
F.  Maintenance and Plat  
 
1.   The Lake Marshall Home Owners’ Association will maintain common areas, fences/walls, and 

landscaping within the front and corner yards of all lots.  The HOA shall also be responsible for 
maintenance of streets, street lighting, and stormwater collection systems within the right-of-way 
and drainage easements within the Lake Marshall Subdivision. 

2. The Final Development Plan shall include the plat document, and the plat shall be in final form. 
 
 
G.  Wetlands and Environmental 
 
1. There is one wetland area onsite.  It is entirely located within the Tract ‘I’ Conservation Area. 
2. There are no areas within a FEMA floodplain onsite.  
3. An erosion control plan will be submitted with the Final Development Plan.  

195



5 
 

4. Tree removal, tree replacement, and landscaping shall comply with Water Wise Ordinance 2069 
and shall be consistent with Article V of the City of Apopka Land Development Code.   

5.  Individual lot arbor/clearing permit is required prior to clearing or grading of any lot or issuance of 
building permit. Placement of the house shall preserve existing trees to the greatest extent practical.  
Plot plan for each lot shall illustrate tree locations as presented within the PUD Master 
Plan\Preliminary Development Plan.  

 
 
H.  Development Condition Continuity 
  

The PUD Development Standards shall be printed within the PUD Master Plan and the Final 
Development Plan. 
 
 

I.  Signage 
 

Signage shall comply with Article 8 of the City of Apopka Land Development Code and with the 
City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines. 

 
 
J.  Lighting    
 

Lighting shall comply with the City of Apopka’s City Ordinance No. 2069 and Section 3.10 of the 
City of Apopka Development Design Guidelines.  Street and parking area or pedestrian path light 
poles shall be decorative type.  Details will be provided with the Final Development Plan. 

 
 
L.  Miscellaneous    
 
1. Any existing septic tanks or wells shall be properly abandoned prior to earthwork or construction. 

Permits shall be applied for and issued by the appropriate agencies. 
2. All acreages are subject to change with final engineering and final plat review and approval. 
 

196



197



198


	Top
	1. 03-21-18 - CC - Consent Agenda - Ratify Election Results
	Staff Report - General Certification 2018.docx
	2018 election results.pdf

	2. 03-21-18 - CC - Consent Agenda - CO - KaBOOM!
	Shakenya - KaBOOM! Staff Report 03.21.18.docx
	Shakenya - KaBOOM! Letter of Intent.pdf
	Shakenya - KaBOOM Staff Report 11.18.15.pdf
	Shakenya - KaBOOM! 11.18.15 Minutes.pdf

	3. 03-21-18 - CC - Consent Agenda - PD - Traffic Enforcement Agreement with Clear Lake Landings
	Clear Lake Landings.docx
	Clear Lake Landing - Unexecuted.pdf

	4. 03-21-18 - CC - Consent Agenda - Public Services - Amendment No. 1 to Inmate Contract No. W1095
	Inmate Contract W1095 Renewal Staff Report.docx
	W1095 AMD#1 2018.pdf

	5. 03-21-18 - CC - Consent Agenda - PS - Martin Pond
	Martin&apos;s Pond Fountains Funding Staff Report.docx

	6. 03-21-18 - CC - Consent Agenda - School Capacity Agreement - Lake Marshall Subdivision, Phases 1 &amp; 2
	1 Lake Marshall Reserve PUD  School Staff Report CMA CC 3-21-18.pdf
	2 AV Homes - Johns Road Apopka - Capacity Enhancement Agreement - AV Home.pdf

	1. 03-21-18 - CC - Business - Final Development Plan/Plat - Lake Gem Commerce Park
	1 Lake Gem Commerce FDP Plat - CC - 3.21.18.pdf
	2 Buidlding Rendering and Lake Gem Commerce Center FULL FDP.pdf
	3 Lake Gem CP Plat.pdf
	4 Lake Gem Commerce Center FULL FDP 24.pdf
	4 Landscape Plan.pdf

	1. 03-21-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2605 - 2nd Rd - Comp Plan Text Amendment - FLUM Policy 20.10 and Table 10.20
	1 FAR Text Change - CC - 11-01-17.pdf
	2 Ord 2605 - FLU Element Amendment.pdf
	3 Exhibit B WPI Vision Plan Map.pdf
	4  Exhibit  C Wekiva Parkway Interchange Area Comp Plan Policies Apopka.pdf

	2. 03-21-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2635 - 1st Rd - Comp Plan Small Scale FLUM - McAllister
	1 McAllister Small Scale FLU CC 3-21-2018 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2635 - McAllister Small Scale FLU.pdf

	3. 03-21-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2636 - 1st Rd - Change of Zoning - McAllister
	1 McAllister RZ CC 3-21-2018 1st Rd.pdf
	2 Ord 2636 - McAllister - ZON.pdf

	4. 03-21-18 - CC - Ordinances - Ord. #2637 - Change of Zoning - PUD Master Plan - Lake Marshall Reserve
	1 Lake Marshall PUD - ZON - CC 03 21 18.pdf
	2 Ord  2637 - Lake Marshall PUD.pdf
	3 Exhibit A Phase 1 Master Plan.pdf
	4 Exhibit B Lake Marshall Phase 1 Master Plan Development Standards.pdf
	5 Exhibit C Phase 1 Landscape_recreation plan.pdf
	6 Exhibt D Phase 2 Master Plan.pdf
	7 Exhibit E Lake Marshall Phase 2 Master Plan Development Standards.pdf
	8 Exhibit F Phase 2 Landscape plan.pdf

	Bottom

